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PROCEEDINGS 

THE VIDEOGRAPHER: It is the beginning of 
3 media number one of the videotaped deposition of 

4 Tracey Jacobs in the matter of Johnny Depp , et al. 
5 versus Amber Heard, et al. in the Circuit Court of 

6 Fairfax County, Case No. CL-2019-00029 11. Today's 

7 date is January 28th, 202 1. The time on the video 
8 monitor is 12:08 p.m. Eastern Standard Time. The 

9 certified videographer today is Jean-Louis Ziesch, 
10 representing Planet Depos. This video deposition 

11 is taking place remotely. Would counsel please 
12 identify yourself and state whom you represent. 

13 MS. BREDEHOFT: Good afternoon. My name 

14 is Elaine Bredehoft, and I represent Amber Heard. 
15 MR. CHEW: Good afternoon. My name is Ben 

16 Chew, and with me here is Camille Vasquez 
17 questions and Andrew Crawford , representing 
18 plaintiff John C. Depp. 

19 MS . VASQUEZ: Good moming--
20 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Good morning -- sorry, 
21 go ahead. 
22 THE WITNESS : Where's Andrew Crawford? 

PLANET DEPOS 
888.433.3767 I WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM 

30027



. , 

lncom. 
Desig . 

R, P 

/ 
Transcript of Tracey Jacobs 

Conducted on January 28, 2021 

3 (9 to 12) 

9 

I MR CHEW: He's -- he's here with rre, he's 

2 just off carrera. I'm using his con-puter. 

3 THE WI1NESS: Okay. 

4 MR MARMORSlEIN: Good 1mrning This is 

5 David Manmrstein I represent the witness, 
6 Tracey Jacobs. And also on with us is Michael 

1 Q Do yo u recall whether the other one was 

2 related to Jake Bloom, that lawsuit? 

3 A No, I don't recall. 
4 Q Okay. 

5 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Counsel? I'm sorry, 
6 Elaine, I'm having a really tough time. You sound 

7 kind of muffled. Is there any way to address the 

8 audio somehow? 

9 MS. BREDEHOFT: Let me see. 

11 

7 Sinclair from UTA, also representing the witness. 

8 THE VIDEOGRAPHER The court reporter 

9 today is Paul Smakula, representing Planet Depos. 

IO Would the court reporter please swear in the 10 MR. MARMORSTEIN: That's better. Thank 

11 witness. 11 yo u. 

12 1RACEY JACOBS, 12 MS. BREDEHOFT: Okay. All right. Thank 

13 having been duly sworn, testified as follows: 13 you for letting me know that. I apprec iate it. 

14 EXAMINATIO BY COUNSEL FOR THE DEFENDANT 14 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Yep. 
1 "i RY ~ RREOFHOFT 

1
16 Q Will yUU please state yUur rnrre arrl 

17 address fur the record. and u may use y0ur 

J 8 business address, if )'QU prefer, fur privacy 

19 reasorn. 

20 A I actually don't know my ~iness address. 

21 I'll give you my honE address. 

22 Q Okay. 
10 

1 A Tracey Renee Jacobs, 7692 Woodrow Wilson 

2 Drive, Los Angeles, California 90046. 

3 Q And what is your current occupation? 

4 A Talent agent. 

5 Q And how long have you been a talent agent? 

6 A 34 years. 

7 Q Now, have you ever had your deposition 

8 taken before? 
9 A Yes. 

l O Q And how many times? 
11 A For this? Three times. This is my third 

12 time. 

13 Q Okay. Can you just tell me briefly what 

1 Q Is it possible that the other litigation, 

1 the other time you testified was related to 

I Mr. Depp bringing the suit against Jake Bloom? 

18 A Maybe. 
19 Q Okay. 

20 A I don't recall. 
2 1 Q All right. Do yo u recall how long your 

22 tes timony was at either of these depos itions? In 

1 other words, did it last an hour? Five hours? 

2 A Most of the day. 
3 Q Do you recall what the subjec t matters 

4 were that you were asked questions about? 

5 A Not really. It was years ago. 
6 Q Okay. Now, yo u're here by subpoena; 

7 co rrec t? 

8 A I think so, yes. 
9 Q All right. And you also were issued a 

10 document request, is that correct, for any 

l l documents you might have? 

12 A Yes. 
l3 Q All right. And yo u provided a declaration 

12 

14 the other two times involved? 
15 A Oh, the first time as l recall was in the 

14 that you did not have any responsive documents, do 

15 you recall that? 

16 case of Johnny and Joel Mandel, and the second 

17 time, I don't know what it was, all I know is l 

18 was deoosed bv Johnnv Deoo: correct? 

19 Q Was it related to the Jake Bloom --
20 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Tracey, don't -- Tracey, 

21 don't ask questions, just give whatever answers 
22 you can, because no one can answer other than you. 

16 A I don't recall. 
17 Q Okay. 

~18 MS . BREDEHOFT: Can we -- Alex, can we 
l9 bring up number -- Deposition -- or Exhibit 3? 
20 Q Ms . Jacobs, I'm going to ask yo u to take a 

21 look at what's been marked as Jacobs Exhibit 3. 

22 Take a minute to read it. 
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13 

l MR. MARMORSTEIN: She just wants yo u to 

2 read it, Tracey, there's no ques tion. 

3 A Okay. 
4 Q Does that refresh your reco llec tion that 

5 you provided a declaration that you did not have 

6 any documents respo ns ive to the subpoena? 

7 A Just that I signed it. I don't recaU. 
8 Q Do you have a recollec tion of conducting a 

9 search for any records that were responsive to the 

10 document reques t? 

11 A My lawyers dealt with that. 
12 Q Okay. 

13 MS. BREDEHOFT: Alex, co uld you bring up 

14 o . 2, please. 

15 THE WITNESS: Are yo u asking me something? 

16 MR. MARMORSTEIN: No, she's asking the 

17 assistant to pull up documents for you to look at. 

18 Q Ms. Jacobs, we have a technic ian who has 

19 all the potential exhibits downloaded from both 

20 sides , and that's Alex that' s here. So when we 

21 bring something up on the sc reen we say, Alex, can 

22 you do this? Or, Alex, can you please bring that 

14 

l up? He's the technic ian, and you'll hear the same 

2 thing from Mr. Chew ifhe has exhibits as well. 

3 I'm going to show you w hat has been marked 

4 --
5 MS. BREDEHOFT: I can take control , A lex, 

6 after you're fini shed marking. 

7 PLANET DEPOS TECHNICIAN: Alex, thi s is 

8 the tech speaking. I just want to let you know 

9 that thi s document is secured, so they're going to 

l O have to mark it at the office. I cannot. 

l l MS. BREDEHOFT : Okay. I'm not even sure 

12 w hat that means, but we' ll say this one is an 

13 exhibit. Can I even get into this one? Yes, I am 

14 controll ing now. Okay. 

15 Q This is w hat wi II be marked as Depos iti on 

16 Exhibit 2 . Ifl could show you the second page 

17 there , it has a subpoena to produce Brooks 

18 documents, etcete ra, do you see tha t? 

19 A Yes. 
20 Q Okay. And then we get to go through lo ts 

2 1 of pages because that' s what lawyers like to do is 

22 put together lots of pages . And then it asks for 

15 

I documents in your possess ion but refer and relate 

2 to, and it has a number of d ifferent --

3 MR. MARMORSTEIN: I' m sorry, Elaine --

4 Elaine, yo u cut out. 

5 MS. BREDEHOFT: I cut out again? Okay. 

6 Q So on this page, we' re at page 6 here, 

7 it's actually 12 of29 on the full document, but 

8 it says page 6, this is the actual document 

9 reques t. Do you have a reco llec tion of conducting 

10 any kind of searches for documents respons ive to 

l I these reques ts, Ms. Jacobs? 

l2 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objec tion; asked and 

13 answered . I think she said that her attorneys 

l4 dealt with it. But yo u can go ahead. 

15 A I don't recaU seeing this. I was asked 
16 for documents and texts, and I turned it over to 
17 my lawyers. 
18 Q Right. And what I'm asking is in addition 

19 to turning it over to your lawyers, do you have a 

20 reco llection of being involved in or conduc ting 

21 any searches fo r documents responsive to this? 

22 A I don't. 

l Q Okay. Thank you. All right. And then we 

2 can --

16 

3 MS. BREDEHOFT: Alex, if yo u can bring up 

4 Document No . l , briefly. 

5 Q And Ms. Jacobs, I understood -- I'm go ing 

6 to ask you to take a look at Jacobs Exh1bit I , but 

7 I understood you had a little bit of uncertainty 

8 when I asked you if you were here under subpoena. 

9 And if you note on this page it says, to attend 

l O and give testimony at a deposition. Does that 

11 refresh your reco llection abo ut whether you are 

12 here testifying under subpoena today? 

13 A Yes. 
14 Q Okay. And is it now your reco llection 

15 that you are here tes tifying under subpoena today? 

16 MR. MARMORSTEIN: I'm going to object, 

17 Counsel. I think --

18 A I don't understand the question. 
19 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Ho ld on, T racey, let me 

20 get my thing on the record first. I think that 

2 1 would require her to divulge disc uss ions with her 

22 lawyers about why she's here under what legal 
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17 

1 capac ity. I'm not sure it's an issue. She's 

2 here. W e're ready to take tes timony. W hy do n't 

3 we just go ahead and do that? Whether she 

4 understands the legal bas is, it would derive from 

5 conversations with counsel. So I'd instrnct her 

6 no t to answer that because that will disclose 

7 c lient-counsel communicatio ns . 

8 MS . BREDEHOFT: All right. I don't think 

9 it's an issue either, I jus t didn't want it to be 

10 unclear o n the record , David , so thank you. 

11 Q Ms. Jacobs , when did you first begin 

12 representing Mr. Depp? 

13 A When I was at another agency, at ICM. I 
14 think it- I represented him 30 years. So now 
15 since he's been gone almost five years, you can 
16 subtract 35 years. And when I came to UT A I 
17 believe it was 1998, he came with me. And I've 
18 been at UTA - now it's been 22 years minus the 
19 last four he was with me from the beginning. 
20 Q Did Mr. Depp have an agent, a talent 

2 1 agent, before you? 

22 A I believe so. 

l Q Do you recall who that was? 

2 A I think her name was Cynthia Campos. 

3 Q And do you recall the circumstances under 

4 which Mr. Depp came to you to have you as his 

5 talent agent? In other words, did somebody refer 

6 you? Strange meeting someplace? What -- what 

7 occasioned it? 

8 A Yes, I do recall. 
9 Q And what was it? 

10 A That I had seen him on his show 21 Jump 

11 Street and just felt like he was going to be a 

l l 

12 movie star off of that show. And somehow, and I 

13 don't recall, someone gave me his mother's phone 

14 number, who's now deceased, and I actually reached 
15 out to her and essentially signed her, and then 

16 she to ld him to meet me. 
17 Q Okay. And over the next 30 years, what 

18 was your role with Mr. Depp in connection with 

19 representing him? And what I' m asking is what 

20 were your general day-to-day responsibilities? 

21 What types of things did you do for Mr. Depp? 

22 MR. CHEW: Objection to the fo rm of the 

19 

1 ques tion; compo und . 

2 MS. BREDEHOFT: I'll clean it up . 

3 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Same. 

4 Q During the time that yo u represented 

5 Mr. Depp as his talent agent, please descnbe the 

6 types of jobs and res ponsibilities yo u perfo rmed 

7 for him. 

8 A I was his agent, so my job, as all agents 
9 are, was to find, procure, and negotiate jobs for 
10 him, acting jobs for him, initially. 
11 Q And did yo u do that? 

12 A Yes. 
13 Q And how did you go abo ut finding jobs for 

14 Mr. Depp? 

15 A You read scripts, you evaluate if they 
16would make sense for him, you call studios, 
17 filmmakers, producers, and you advocate for your 
18 client. That's what I did 
19 Q Now, would you agree that Mr. Depp became c F 

20 quite successful while you were his ta lent agent? 

2 1 MR. CHEW: Objection. 

22 A Yes. 
20 

l MR. MARMORSTEIN: Vague. 

2 MR. CHEW: Objection; lack of foundation. 

3 Q Well, I'm assuming if yo u were his talent} -----c.. .... 41 \ agent that yo u would know what his -- how his) 

5 career was tracking over that 30 years yo u were 

6 with him, wo uld yo u not? 

7 A He became the biggest star in the world. 
8 Q And do yo u take any credit fo r that? 

9 A Yes. 
10 Q And why? W hat do yo u think yo ur 

11 contributions were to Mr. Depp becoming the 

12 bigges t star in the world? 

13 A Well, A, that he was extraordinarily 
14 talented. And, B, that my talent was compatible 
15 with his in terms of understanding the kinds of 
1 roles and scripts and filmmakers that would make 
17 sense for him to work with and being able to 
18 master the two and put them together. 
19 Q Did Mr. Depp ever acknowledge that yo u 

20 were respo nsible, at leas t in part, for his 

2 1 successfu l career? 

22 MR. CHEW: Objection; calls fo r hearsay. 
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1 A Actually, yes. And many times to me and 
23 

1 films , but all in all we had a great relationship, 

2 in front of other people. 
3 Q I'm going to ask you to take a look at 

4 Deposition Exhibit 5. 

5 This is the deposition of Mr. Depp that 

2 we grew up together. When she decided at one 

3 point to change agencies, she left ICM for UT A, 

4 United Talent Agency, she asked if I would go with 

5 her, I went with her to UT A. And her reasons for 

6 was taken on November 12, 2020. And I'm going to 

7 ask to --

6 going to UT A were pretty simple, she would become 

7 a fu ll-fledged partner, and I believe that she was 

8 MS. BREDEHOFT : Alex, I'll let you, can 

9 you take it down to page 587 in the comer? Thank 

10 you. And then if I can take control. 

11 Q Ms. Jacobs , I'm going to direct your 

8 the first full-fledged woman partner in any of the 

9 agencies in Los Angeles in terms of being a 

10 partner and on the board and all. So she, by 

11 going to UT A, she wo uld have felt in a much better 

12 attention to page 587 of Mr. Depp's deposition, 12 position, more power, more money, and I went 

13 lines six and seven. I asked him was Tracey 13 because she was my agent. I knew nothing about 

14 Jacobs a successful agent for you while you did 14 UT A. 

15 employ her as your agent? 15 Then I asked -- part of what I asked, and 

16 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Counsel can you expand 16 this was helpful -- but part of what I asked is, 

17 that a little bit? I can't really read it. 

18 MS. BREDEHOFT: Thank you, Alex. Can you 

17 do you believe that Tracey Jacobs was a successful 

18 agent for you? Did she help you building your 

19 read it now, David? 19 career? 

20 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Thank you. Yeah, much 20 She was success -- a successful agent by 

21 better. 21 being there with me and supporting choices that I 

22 A Are you supposed to cut off? Because it 22 made. And she was -- she was a very good agent in 

22 

1 cuts off. I don't know where you want me to read 
2 until. 
3 Q Okay. I'll -- I'm not, what we' re doing 

4 is just making it more expansive for your 

5 attorney? 

6 A I've never seen this before. This is the 
7 first time. 
8 Q Right. So Mr. Depp testified, Tracey 

9 Jacobs was a -- we in a sense grew up together 

10 from a certain point in my work. Somewhere around 

11 '80 -- 1989, '89 is when I -- '88 is went I with 

12 Tracey Jacobs , and we were with ICB at the time 

13 and so she was building her career. We were 

14 building -- and I was building my role as it were 

15 in terms of choices and where I was hoping to take 

16 the work the direction I wanted. Let's go --

17 somehow that cut out -- take the work in. 

18 MS. BREDEHOFT: And then ifwe can move 

19 that up . I'm sorry. Alex, I think I've crossed 

20 with you here. 

21 Q So we stayed together for all those years. 

22 She supported my sometimes unexpected choices in 

24 

1 that way, successful, sure, but successful 

2 essentially because of the choices that I was 

3 making. She didn't make the choices for me, 

4 therefore what she can do is support me, give me 

5 advice, or just go ahead and make w hatever deal in 

6 it. 

7 

8 
Do you see that? 

A Yes. 
9 Q Would you agree with that? 

l O MR. MARMORSTEJN: I'm sorry, vague as to 

11 form; compound. You're asking her if she agrees 

12 with two pages of his depo testimony. I'm not 

13 sure what you're going for here . And I'm not sure 

14 how close it is to the issues in your case, but 

15 I'm giving you some leeway, but I'd l ike to move 

16 this forward . Go ahead, ask your questions . 

17 MR. CHEW: I would also object on the 

18 grounds of vague; confusing; and ambiguous. 

19 MS. BREDEHOFT: I'll re hrase. 

20 Q So, Ms . Jacobs, directing your attention 

2l just to thi s last answer that' s on page 588, 

22 s tarting at line 15 , where he describes that you 
~rp 
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.--- ----------------- -
l were successful because of the choices he made, 

2 would you agree with that characterization? 

~ 

l Would you agree with Mr. Depp's 

2 characterization of your representation of him -­

MK. Ctt.t,W : UbJectlon. 

27 ~ , C, 
V ue, 
A big ., 

C,D 

3 A Well, in the sense that of course they j 

4 were always the choices he made, I wasn't the one 4 A No. 
5 doing the acting, but I brought him the 
6 opportunities. 
7 Q Okay. Thank you. Now, I'm going to jump 

8 ahead because T think it'll move things a little 

9 faster in between as well, but what is your 

10 understanding of the reason why Mr. Depp 

11 terminated you? 

12 MR. CHEW: Objection; calls for 
13 speculation. 

14 A I really don't know. AU I know is he 
15 terminated essentially everyone in his life, so I 
1 was alon11 for thP. rirlP. I 1111P.ss. 

17 Q I'm going to ask you to go up on this same 

18 deposition exhibit number to Mr. Depp's testimony. 

19 MR. CHEW: I wo uld move to strike all of 
20 that answer after "I don't know." 

21 Q Ms. Jacobs, I'm go ing to direct you to the 

22 question here on page -- page 584. 

1 
2 
-J 

4 

26 

MR. CHEW: And the basis of the motion to 

strike was that the rest after "I don't know" was 
• 1 • ' 

JlVL J_\.,;:) vu.::,, V\J LV LU\., u v "';:, uv1.1.. 

Q Line 20 said -- I'm directing your 

5 
6 

attention to line 20 of Mr. Depp's deposition on 
November 2020. And why did you leave Tracey 

7 Jacobs in October 2016? Put down. 
8 And Mr. Depp's answer was: Ms . Jacobs, in 

9 the same attempt to corral the fevery and the 

10 injustice that was practiced upon me by Mr. Mandel 

11 and Mr. Bloom, at a certain point Tracey Jacobs 
12 began to sort of become revealed as -- I won't say 

13 co-conspirator necessarily, but she was part of 

14 that little group, and it seemed to be in my best 
15 interest to walk away from that relationship 
1 because her interests were quite different than 
17 when they started -- when we started. See -- I 
18 believe she even stated that the reason she kept 

19 me for so long was the, quote, was the money. She 
20 stated otherwise she said I was not an easy client 

21 to represent or something to that extent. And so 
"'"' .. .......... l ..... ..... ....I .. ...... 1 .......... .. '"' ............ "" .............. ..... .. . 

5 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection; calls for --

6 ho ld on. 
7 MS. BREDEHOFT: I need to finish my 

8 question. 
9 Q -- as reflected in this segment that I 

I ) just read from Mr. Depp's deposition? 

1 l MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection; compound; 

I 2 vague and ambiguous; calls for speculation; lacks 

I foundation; assumes facts not in evidence. 

I i MR. CHEW: I echo all of those objections 
l · and incorporate them by reference on behalf of 

I ' Mr. Depp. 

17 THE WITNESS: Am I supposed to answer a 

18 question? 

19 MR. MARMORSTEIN: If you can understand 
...,," : .. - ·- ·· ... •- ~ ·, ·,I.....J ..... _ ... . . . .... . . _; .. 'T"..,.... .... ......... . . 
"-' V ,.,., J .._. ._ ._. ,.,..._.._._,.... ....,_..__.._._. ' ' _.-.._ .,..,, _.._ ._..,..._._J • 

21 A I understand it. This is the first time 
22 l'm hearing or seeing this in five years. No is 
I 2s 

J~
l the answer. 
_ Q And why do you not agree with this? 
., A Because it's au untrue. 
4 Q And then I asked him, after asking ifhe 

5 med you and he said no, he did sue Mr. Mandel and 
6 fake Bloom so I thought it was prudent to ask --

7 :hen I asked him: Did Tracey Jacobs say why she 
8 jid not consider you to be an easy client to 

9 :epresent? 

l O And she certainly never -- she never 

11 ~xpressed any of those things to me. These are 
12, :hings that she was able -- I guess she came to 

13 :he realization that I was not easy to represent 

14 :tfter I fired her. Ms. Jacobs, there was 
15 ;onfl icts of interests all over the place. She 
I 1ad been represented by Joel Mandel , she was also 

17 :o some degree represented by Jake Bloom, so 
18 :herefore there was an obvious great, huge 
19 ;onflict of interest which I li ved with for a 

20 .ittle while and though no, no, this is not -- not 

2 I 1 good idea. 

1--- J - ,.;' ---- - --- ·--·- --- - o- ·· - J· Now, my question to you is , do you agree 
r~~ 
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with Mr. Depp's characterization that you only 

2 expressed that he was a difficult client to work 

3 for after he frred you? 

4 A Absolutely not. 
5 Q And do you agree with Mr. Depp's 

6 characterization that your representation of him 

7 had conflicts of interests all over the place? 

29 

8 A Joel Mandel was never my business partner. 
9 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Just answer the 

10 ques tion, Tracey. 

11 A I - what was the question? This is 
12 crazy. What was the question? 
13 Q Do you agree that you had conflicts of 

14 interests all over the place in representing 

15 Mr. Depp as he states here? 

16 A No. 
17 Q Do you agree that you had been represented 

18 by Joel Mandel? 

19 A No, never. 
20 Q Do you agree that you were represented by 

2 1 Jake Bloom? 

22 A Only insofar as he helped me make my deal 
I 30 

11 at UTA. That was it. Period 
2 Q And that was back in 1998 or '99? 

3 
4 

A No, but just for bonus time he helped me. 
Q Okay. Thank you. So d id you tell 

5 Mr. Depp that he was a difficult client, not an 

6 easy c lient to represent? 

7 A I don't know if I said it that way, but 
8 yes. 

1

9 Q Was Mr. Depp a difficult client to 

10 represent? 

11 MR. CHEW: Objection; vague and ambiguous . 

12 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Join. Yo u can answer, 

13 Tracey. 

14 A He wasn't initially. And it became far 
15 more complicated in the last ten years of my 
1 representing him 
17 Q And how did it become far more complicated 

18 in the last ten years you represented him? 

19 A His unprofessional behavior. 
20 Q Anything else? 

21 A I think that covers a multitude of things. 
22 Q And that's going to be my next question. 

3 1 

l What do you mean by Mr. Depp's unprofessional 

2 behavior in the last ten years of your 

3 representation? 

4 A Showing up late to set consistently on 
5 virtually every movie. I would get yelled at. I 
6 never said to him, you're a difficult client, I 
7 never used those words, but I was very honest with 
8 him and said, you've got to stop doing this, this 
9 is hurting you. And it did And - yeah. 
10 Q Did -- even with your speaking with 

11 Mr. Depp about him consistently showing up late to 

12 set, did he correct that behavior during that last 

13 ten years? 

14 A No. 
15 Q And what types of difficulties did that 

16 cause for Mr. Depp? 

17 A Well, initially crews loved him because he 
18 was always so great with the crew, but crews don't 
19 love sitting around for hours and hours and hours 
20 waiting for the star of the movie to show up. And 
21 it also got around town. I mean, people talk, 
22 it's a small community. And it made people 

32 

1 reluctant to use him towards the end. 
2 Q And when you say towards the end, was that 

3 towards the end of your representation of 

4 Mr. Depp? 

5 A Yes. 
6 Q And one of the last films that Mr. Depp 

7 made while you represented him was Pirates --

8 we've been calling it Pirates 5, but Pirates of 

9 the Caribbean 5. Are you comfortable with using 

IO the tenn Pirates 5? 

11 A Yes. 
12 Q Okay. Do you recall difficulties that 

13 Mr. Depp had during Pirates 5? 

14 A Yes. 
15 Q What do you recall? 

16 A That some days he wouldn't show up at all 
17 or he'd show up seven hours late. 
18 Q And how was that being expressed to you as 

19 a problem? 

20 A The head of Disney studios called me to 
21 complain. 
22 Q And who was the head of Disney studios at 
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l 
33 

that time? 

2 
3 
4 

5 
6 

A He's stilJ the head, Sean Bailey. 
Q What do you recall Mr. Bailey saying to 

you about Mr. Depp in --
MR. CHEW: Objection; hear --

Q -- Pirates 5? 
7 MR. CHEW: Objectio n; calls for hearsay. 

8 A I don't recalJ exactly what he said, but 
9 it was something to the effect of, this has got to 
1 O stop. It's costing us a fortune. It's forcing 
11 overages. It's very expensive. It's 
12 unprofessional. That's the - that's what I 
13 recall. 
14 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Elaine, when we have a 
15 quick minute, can we take a quick break? 
16 MS . BREDEHOFT: Ye . Can I askjust a 
17 couple more questions on this and then we can take 
18 one? 
19 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Sure. I think my 
20 bladder can handle it. 
21 MS. BREDEHOFT: Oh. You know what? o. 
22 I'm understanding of bladders. We can take a 

34 

35 

1 A I don't reca lJ. 
2 Q And when you spoke with Sean Bailey about 
3 Mr. Depp's delays not showing up at all, showing 
4 up seven hours late, and the problems that it was 
5 causing, was that before or after Pirates had to 
6 uspend for everal weeks because Mr. Depp injured 
7 his finger? 
8 MR. CHEW: Objection. 
9 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection; vague --
10 MR. CHEW: Objection. 
11 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Hold on, Ben, let me go 
12 first. Objection; vague and ambiguous; calls for 
13 speculation; lacks foundation; assumes facts not 
14 in evidence. Yeah. 
15 MR. CHEW: I echo all of those. But to be 
16 clear, object also on the grounds lack of 
17 foundation; assumes facts not in evidence. 

18 A So am I supposed to say something now? 
19 MR. MARMORSTEIN: If you recall. 
20 Q Do you want the court reporter to read 
21 back my question? 

22 A No. It was five years ago; I really don't 
36 

l break now. Do you want to take five? Ten? What 1 recaU. 
2 do you want to do? 2 Q Okay. Do you have a reco ll ection of the 
3 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Ten would be great. 3 production of Pirates 5 having to suspend for 
4 MS. BREDEHOFT: All right. Ten minutes. 4 several weeks whil e Mr. Depp had surgery on his 
5 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: It is 12:38 p.m. We go 5 finger? 
6 off the record. 6 A Yes. 
7 (Off the record from 12:38 p.m. to 12:48 7 MR. CHEW: Objection; lack of foundation. 
8 p.m.) 8 Q Okay. What do you recall --
9 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: It is the beginning of 9 MR. MARMORSTEJN: Counsel, let me --
10 media two of the testimony of Tracey Jacobs. It 

11 is 12:48 p.m. We're back on the record. 
12 Q Ms. Jacobs, before we took the break we 
13 were talking about Pirates 5, the filming of 
14 Pirates 5, and a conversation you had with Sean 
15 Bailey, the head of Disney studios. Did you have 
16 just one conversation with Sean Bailey or did yo u 
17 have more than one conversation with Sean Bailey 
18 about Pirates 5? 
19 A More than one, I'm sure. I don't recalJ. 
20 Q Would you say probably at least a few? 
21 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection; calls for 
22 speculation. I don't think she recalls . 

l O Counsel, let me just put something on the record, 
11 and perhaps I' ll just direct it to you. Again, I 
12 mentioned this at the onset, I'm fami liar with the 
l 3 issues in your case, both the complaint and the 
l 4 cross complaint, I had them ent to me. They seem 
l 5 to re late merely to, you know, a couple articles 
16 about defamation. So it feels like we're really 
17 far afield on those issues or anything potentially 
18 re levant. Again, I'd like to get this thing 
19 moving along and I don't want to have to instruct 
20 her not to answer based on relevance. But, you 
21 know , I would rea lly like to get to the germane 
22 issues and stay around all thi s background that's 
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37 39 

l rea lly well documented in history and into the I assumes facts not in evidence. 

2 record. I don't know how it -- unless you want to 2 MR. MARMORSTEIN: You can go ahead , 

3 give me an offer of proof on why, you know , his 3 Tracey. 

4 performance on Pirates 5 has anything to do with 4 A Just that it was suspended. 
5 defamation claims later on having to do w ith other 5 Q Did you go to Australia at any point 

6 issues not related to his performance on movie 6 during the filming of Pirates 5? 

7 sets. 7 A Twice. 
8 MS. BREDEHOFT: I would be happy to have 8 Q When, approximately, during the filming of 

9 the conversation with you in the next break so 9 these? If you can't remember the dates , if you 

IO that it's not in front of the witness , but let me 10 remember where in the film you did , please let me 

l l assure you that I would not be asking these 11 know. 

12 questions unless they were not abso lute ly, 12 A I don't recall the dates. I was there the 
13 l 00 percent on point with the issues in this case. 13 fi rst time he had just left for LA for his hand, 
14 And if you read the counterclaim and particularly 14 and then I went back three weeks later, but I 
15 the allegations of the defamation claims of 15 don't know the dates. 
16 Ms. Heard engaging in hoaxes, and I don't know 16 Q And what was the purpose of your traveling 

17 whether you read the op inion from UK, and that's 17 to Australia the frrst time after Mr. Depp had 

18 corning in as well , but there's a great deal of 18 just left for LA because of his finger? 

19 testimony relating to the Australian incident and 19 A I always went to visit him on virtually 
20 the March 2015 incident, and there's a great dea l 20 every movie. 
2 1 of evidence in this case relating to Pirates 5 and 21 Q Do you actually visit Mr. Depp at that 

22 Pirates 6. 22 time or was he already gone back to LA? 

38 40 = l So this is very, very germane. I wouldn't 11 A He was already gone. 
2 be wasting Ms . Jacobs's time. I apprec iate very 2 Q Do you recall having a telephone 

3 much that she's here. But I'm not the type of 3 conversation with Mr. Depp in those two to three 

4 lawyer who spends time on frolics and detours . 4 days before he went back to LA? 

5 I'm -- 5 MR. CHEW: Lack of foundation. 

6 MR. MARMORSTEIN: All right. 6 A No. 
7 MS. BREDEHOFT: -- going to get to the 7 Q Was there anything that prompted your 

8 point. I'm going to do it quickly. 8 flying out to Australia at that particular time? 

9 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Understood. And maybe 9 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection; asked and 
10 we should have that conversation at the next 10 answered. You can go ahead, Tracey. 

11 break. But go ahead and ask your next question. 11 A What's - I'm sorry, can you repeat the 
12 Q Can you reread -- read back my last 12 question? 
13 question. 13 Q Yes . Was there something that caused you 

14 (Requested portion read back.) 14 to determine that that was the time you should get 

15 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Vague and ambiguous . 15 on the plane and fly to Australia? 

16 Q What do you recall about the suspension of 16 A Yes. 
17 the film because of Mr. Depp's injuring his finger 17 Q What do you recall that being? 

18 and having to have surgery? 18 A The complaints about what I stated earlier 
19 MR. CHEW: Objection. 19 about the lateness, not showing up, to talk to him 
20 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection; vague and 20 about it. 
21 ambiguous. 21 Q Okay. Had you then spoken with Sean 

22 MR. CHEW: Objection; lack of foundation; 22 Bailey at that point? 
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43 

2 Q Were there others that would talk to you 

learn that Mr. Depp had flown back to LA with a 
2 finger injury? 

3 about Mr. Depp not showing up on set? 
4 MR. CHEW: Objection to the form --

3 A I called his sister to have her let him 11 

4 know that I was on my way to set and she to ld melin ~ 
5 objection; lack of foundation. 
6 Q I'll ask that differently. 
7 Did you have contact with other peop le on 

8 the set or related to the Disney filming of 
9 Pirates 5 in which you learned that Mr. Depp wa 

10 not showing up on time or was not showing up at 
11 all? 

12 A Yes, but I don't recall with whom. 
13 Q Okay. Generally what tature would those 
14 people be? Who would be reporting to you to tell 

15 you that? 
16 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection; calls for 
17 speculation; lacks foundation. 

18 A It could be an ass istant, it could be 
19 through the director's agent, as we represented 
20 the director. I don't recall. 

R, P, 121 Q Okay. But you recall learning that 
Argumentative 22 Mr. Depp was not showing up on set or was showing 

I 42 
R, p l up very, very late and you determined to tly out 
Argumentative 2 to Australia to talk with him about it in March of 

3 2015? 
4 MR. CHEW: Objection; argumentative; lack 
5 of foundation; assumes facts not in evidence. 

6 A As I said, I always visited him on every 
7 film, and there was this additional issue which I 
8 wanted to deal with. 
9 Q And the additional issue was Mr. Depp not 
IO showing up on set or showing up very late on set; 
I I is that correct? 

I 12 MR. CHEW: Ob jection; arJn1JT1entative. 
R, P, Argum. 113 A Yes. 

14 Q When you arrived in Australia, where did 
15 you go? 
16 MR. MARMORSTEIN: You mean off the plane? 
17 MS. BREDEHOFT: Yeah, that was badly 
18 asked. Good point. Okay. 
19 Q When you flew to Australia, were you aware 
20 that Mr. Depp wa on his way to LA? 

21 A No, I was not. 
22 Q When you arrived in Australia, how did you 

5 he was on a plane back to Los Angeles. 
6 Q And his sister was Christy Dembrowski? 

7 A Yes. 
8 Q What did Chri ty Dembrowski tell you about 
9 the reasons that Mr. Depp was on his way back to 

10 LA? 
11 MR. CHEW: Objection; calls for hearsay. 

12 A I don't recall exactly what she said other 
13 than he wasn't there. 
14 Q As a result of Ms . Dembrowski telling you 

15 that, did you stay in Australia or did you turn 

16 around and come back? 

17 A I believe I stayed for two days and then 
18 flew back. 
19 Q While you were in Australia during that 
20 time frame, did you go to the house that Mr. Depp 

21 had been staying in? 

22 A I was never there. 

l Q Did you see any pictures of the house or 
2 any of the damage that was at the house? 

44 

3 MR. CHEW: Objection; assumes facts not in 
4 evidence; lack of foundation. 
5 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Join. 

6 A No. 
7 Q Did you talk with anyone who described the 
8 damage to the house that Mr. Depp was staying in 
9 in Australia? 

10 A No. 
11 Q While you were in Australia that first 
12 time for those two days, did you visit the set? 

13 A Yes. 
14 Q And who did you speak with there? 
15 A Jerry Bruckheimer, the producer, Joachim 
16 Ronning, the director, some of the other actors 
17 who I knew. 
18 Q And what, if anything, did Mr. Bruckheimer 
19 and these other ay about Mr. Depp at that point? 
20 MR. CHEW: Objection; calls for hearsay. 

21 A I don't recall. 
22 Q Were they upset? 
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l MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection; calls for 

2 peculation. 

3 A Jerry doesn't -
4 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection; lacks 

5 foundation. You're asking if they said they were 

6 upset or if she understood them to be upset. 

7 MS. BREDEHOFT : Either. 

8 MR. CHEW: Objection; calls for hearsay. 

9 A Jerry doesn't -
10 Q I'm sorry. Go ahead. 

45 

I MR. MARMORSTErN: Join. 

2 A I can't say. I wasn't there. 
3 Q When you were talking earLier abo ut there 

4 being a change in Mr. Depp's behavior over the 

5 last ten years of your representation and him 

6 becoming more unprofessiona~ was part of 

7 unprofessional behavior his increased use of 

8 alcoho l and drugs? 

9 MR. CHEW: Objection; argumentative. 

10 THE WITNESS: Should I answer? 

11 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Go ahead. 

47 

11 A Jerry doesn't show being upset. I 
12 wouldn't know how he fe lt. 12 A Yes. =------------------ii-.. 
13 Q Did any of the others you spoke with 

14 express any upset about Mr. Depp? 

15 MR. CHEW: Objection; calls for hearsay. 

16 Q During these conversations? 

17 MR. CHEW: Calls for hearsay; objection. 

18 A I don't recall. 
19 Q Well, what do you recall talking to them 

20 about --

2 1 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection; asked --

22 sorry. 

46 

I Q -- during your time there? 

2 MR. MARMORSTEIN: I'm going to object as 

3 asked and answered . She said she didn't recall 

4 the conversations and yo u' ve asked her again what 

5 he recalls. I don't think -- she can say it 

6 twice. Go ahead . 

7 A This was five years ago, literally. I 
8 don't recall what was said specifically. 
9 Q Were yo u aware that Mr. Depp had been 

IO drinking alcohol heavily and taking drugs at this 

11 time leading up to the finger injury and his going 

12 back to LA? 

13 MR. MARMORSTErN: Objection. 

14 MR. CHEW: Objection; lack of fo undation; 

15 assumes fact not in evidence. 

16 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Join. Vague and 

17 ambiguous . You can answer. 

18 A I'm not sure. What's the question again? 
19 Q Could you read that back, Pau~ please? 

20 (Requested portion read back.) 

21 MR. CHEW: Objection; lack of foundation ; 

22 a umes facts not in evidence. 

13 Q Was part of the unp rofessional behavior 

14 that you witnessed increasing over the last ten 

15 years of your representation of Mr. Depp his 

16 increasing anger and tendency towards violence? 

17 MR. CHEW: Objection; argumentative; 

18 assumes facts definitely not in evidence; lack of 

19 fo undation. 

C, F 

~O MR. MARMORSTEIN: Join. You can answer if 
~ I you know. 

122 A No. 

I Q What were your observations with respect 

2 to Mr. Depp's use of alcohol in the last ten years 

3 of your representation of him? 

4 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection; calls for 

48 

5 speculation; vague and ambiguous; assumes fact not 

6 in evidence. You're as king her impressions over a 

7 10-year period? 

8 MS . BREDEHOFT : I asked her for her 

9 observation. 

10 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Over that time period? 

11 MS. BREDEHOFT: Ye . 

12 MR. MARMORSTEIN: If you can answer that, 

13 Tracey. 

14 A I never witnessed drug use. Alcohol, I 
15 see everybody drink. And I don't - I don't know 

0 , F, H 

l.l6 exactlv . .__ _______________ ,. __ 

17 Q What did you observe or become aware about 

l/8 relating to Mr. Depp that led you to the 

19 conclusion that his behavior had become 

20 increasingly unprofessional over the past ten 

21 years of your representation of him? 

22 MR. CHEW: Objection; lack of foundation; I 

R, P, 
AF 
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49 

1 assumes facts not in evidence; mischaracterizes 

2 testimony. 

3 A Again, the lateness, I could never get him 
4 on the phone or get a response to anything. And 
5 -yeah. 
6 Q I'm going to ask you to take a look at 

7 Deposition Exhibit 7. 

8 MS. BREDEHOFT: Nex, can you bring that 

9 up, please? 

10 Q Ms . Jacobs, I'm going to ask you to take a 

11 look at what has been marked a Depos ition 

12 Exhibit 7. 

13 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Counsel, is she a 

14 recipient on this , just so I know? 

15 MS. BREDEHOFT: She is not. 

16 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Okay. 

17 MS. BREDEHOFT: This is an email from 

18 David Kipper. 

19 Q Do you know who David Kipper is , 

20 Ms . Jacobs? 

21 A Yes. 
22 Q And what was your understanding of David 

50 

I Kipper' s relatio nship with Mr. Depp while you were 

2 representing Mr. Depp? 

3 A He was to help him with drugs and alcohol. 
4 Q Do you know who referred Dr. Kipper to 

5 Mr. Depp? 

6 A I did. 
7 Q And why did you refer Dr. Kipper to 

8 Mr. Depp? 

9 A He has had a lot of experience with high 
10 profile people in really helping them seriously 
11 2et and stay sober. 
12 Q Now, Mr. -- Dr. Kipper started his --
13 started seeing Mr. Depp in approximately May of 

14 2014. Do you have a recollection of what was 

15 go ing on in that time frame that led you to refer 

16 Dr. Kipper to Mr. Depp at that time? 

17 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Can we have that 

18 question read back, please? 

19 (Requested portion read back.) 

20 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection; compound; 

21 lacks foundation; assumes facts not in evidence. 

22 Counsel, I think you have a few presumptions in 

I 

51 

l that question before you even asked that question, 

2 and I'm not sure that was intentional, but if it 

3 wasn't, maybe you want to restate it. 

4 MR. CHEW: Rather than repeating them, I 

5 incorporated those objections by reference. 

6 Vagueness as well. 

7 MS. BREDEHOFT: I mean, I can ask it --

8 you know, you've asked me to try to move thi 
9 along and then you do all these objections to low 

1 O it down, but I'll do that. 

11 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Well , you're asking her 

12 to confirm your May to August and then you're 

13 asking for information about thi time, you're not 

14 really clarifying what time you're ta lking about. 

15 So it's not a great question. I'd 1 ike to move it 

16 a long, but we need rea lly solid questions too, but 

17 go ahead. 

18 MS. BREDEHOFT: That's absolutely fine . 

19 We'll take it a b it s lower. 

20 Q So, Ms. Jacobs, do you recall 

21 approximately when you referred Dr. Kipper to 

22 Mr. Depp? 

1 A No, I can't recall. 
2 Q Nl right. Do you recall what transpired 

3 that led you to the point of believing that you 

4 needed to refer Dr. Kipper to Mr. Depp? 

5 A No. 
6 Q Did you communicate with Dr. Kipper over 

7 the time period that you continued to represent 

8 Mr. Depp about Mr. Depp? 

9 A I don't recall. 
10 Q Have you spoken with Dr. Kipper about 

52 

11 Mr. Depp since your representation terminated with 

12 Mr. Depp? 

13 A No, not at all. 
14 Q I'm going to ask you now to take a look 

15 down, this is August 18, 2014. Do you have a 

16 recollection o f Mr. Depp going to his island in 

17 the Bahamas to try to do a detox? 

18 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Object to the form of 

19 the question. Are you asking her to recall that 

20 based on this exhibit? 

21 MS. BREDEHOFT: No. 

22 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Okay. You highlighted 
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53 

the date as you were asking the question, which --

2 MR. CHEW: And, Elaine, I would also 

3 object to you show ing this witness confidential 

4 medical information relating to Mr. Depp. She's 

5 not party to the protective order. And it's 

6 inappropriate. 

7 MS. BREDEHOFT: Ben, I would tell you that 

8 the protective order a llows us to show these to 

9 witnesses. And it is a lso public knowledge now, 

LO it was an exhibit in the UK proceedings and it was 

LL published, so I think you might have a hard time 

L2 w ith that one as well. But the protective order 

L3 a ll ows me to show to any witness. 

14 MR. CHEW: She's not competent to answer 

15 questions about a document that she wasn't 

16 addressed on and he' s never een before. 

L 7 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Counsel, let's first --

18 let's first establish this . The question didn't 

19 include -- Counsel, am I ri ght, did not include 

20 the exhibit, so I don't think you're asking --

2 L MS. BREDEHOFT : Right. 

22 MR. MARMORSTEIN: -- on the exhi bit. 
54 

MS. BREDEHOFT: Correct. 

2 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Maybe Alex can take it 

3 down while you ask that question so it's not 

4 confusing to the witne s. 

5 MS. BREDEHOFT: That'll just take more 

6 time. Can you -- Paul, can you reread the 

7 question? 

8 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Right. 

9 

10 

(Requested portio n read back.) 

MR. MARMORSTErN: Tracey, the question is 

11 do you have a recollection on that date 

12 irrespective of the exhibit in front you. 

13 A Yes. 
14 Q What do you recall about that particular 

15 occasion? 

16 A Frankly, nothing, l just know it happened. 
17 Q Okay. Are yo u aware of any rehabilitation 

18 center that Mr. Depp ever went to, any type of 

19 ho pita! or treatment program for --

20 A No. 
2 1 Q -- drugs or alcoho l? I'm sorry, I should 

22 have finis hed that -- for drug or alcohol? 

1 A No. 
2 Q Okay. I'm going to -- okay. Now I'm 

3 going to contro l and go down. I'm going to ask 

4 you to take a look at the seco nd paragraph. And 

5 it says he is uncomfortable, is pessimistic that 

6 he will ever be able to stop us ing drugs , actually 

7 romanticizes the entire drug culture, and has no 

8 acco untability for his behaviors . 

9 Are these statements by Dr. Kipper 

10 cons istent with your observations of Mr. Depp? 

11 MR. CHEW: Objection; calls -- objection; 

12 hearsay; lack of foundation , argumentative; 

13 assumes facts not in evidence. 

14 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Join. 

15 A I'm sorry, what was the question? 
16 Q Paul can you read it back, please? 

17 (Requested portion read back.) 

18 MR. CHEW: Objection; lack of foundation; 

19 lack of personal knowledge; she's never seen this 

20 document before; argumentative; hearsay. 

21 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Join. 

55 

22 A I'm not a doctor. I wasn't there. R, SP, IC, 

56 

Q Did you, in your dealings with Mr. Depp, 

2 observe that he appeared to romanticize the drug 

3 culture and had no accountability for his 

4 behaviors? 

5 MR. CHEW: Objection; lack of foundation; 

6 a rgumentative; asswnes fact not in evidence. 

7 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Join. It' s also 

8 compound. There's two questions there. Tracey, 

9 you can answer. 

IO Q I'll take them one at a time. That's all 

11 right. 

N 

12 Did you observe in your dealings with R1 P, 

13 Mr. Depp as his representative that he lmpr. C ar. 
E id., 

14 romanticized the enti re drug culture? co 

LS MR. CHEW: Ob jection. I 
16 A Yeah. R P lmnr C:h"r F~rl SP 

1

17 MR. CHEW: Objection; lack of foundation; 

18 assumes facts not in evidence; and argumentative. 

19 A Yes. R P lmnr C:h"r Fvi~ SP 

20 Q And did you a lso observe in your dealings 

2 1 with Mr. Depp as -- in your context of 

22 representing him that he has no accountability for 
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57 

l his behaviors? 

2 MR. CHEW: Objection; lack of fo undation; 

3 asswnes facts not in evidence; and argumentative. 

4 A I don't know. 
5 Q When you would speak with Mr. Depp about 

6 not showing up on set at all or showing up seven 

7 hours late, what were the reasons Mr. Depp gave 

8 you? 

9 A He didn't 
10 Q Would you think that might reflect an 

l l accountability is ue with him? 

12 MR. CHEW: Objection; argumentative --

1 A You asked me, I think, if he has 
2 fundamental issues with anger, but is that in 
3 respect to this or in eeneral? I don't know. 
4 Q I'm asking for your observations based on 

5 your dealings with Mr. Depp , was it your 

6 ob ervation that Mr. Depp had fundamental issues 

7 with anger? 

8 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection; calls for 

9 peculation; beyond the scope of witness. I don't 

l O think she's -- she ha the capacity to opine on 

11 his co ndition or anger issue . She's not that 

12 kind of professio nal. But you can answer if you 

59 

P, 
lmpr. 
Char. 
Evid ., 

SP 

13 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection; vague. 

14 MR. CHEW: -- calls for peculation. ~ 
1 J rnmK you can, 1 racey. P I Ch E .d 1P , mpr. ar. v1 ., 

14 A Yeah. 
15 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Join those. 

16 A Again, I'm not a doctor. I don't know 
17 what he thought 
18 Q Let's go to the next page. Sometimes my 

19 reel goes a little bit too fast. I have to go to 

20 the s ide. All right. 

2 1 Dr. Kipper says on the second page, he ha 

22 -- referring to Mr. Depp -- he has fundamenta l 

15 MR. CHEW: Objection; lack of foundation 

l 6 and lack of competency. 

l 7 Q And in your observation of Mr. Depp having 

18 fimdamental issues with anger, did that worsen 

19 over the time of your representation or was it 

20 relatively the same? 

21 A Yes. 
22 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Which one, Tracey? 

60 

P, 
lmpr. 
Char. 
Evid ., 

SP 

58 

l issues with anger. Di d you observe Mr. Depp in 

2 your deals with him hav ing fundamenta l issues with 

3 anger? 

t A It worsened over time. P, lmpr. Char. Ei d., SP 

n Ann riiri vn 11 m::ik-P ::inv nh Prv::itinn ::l'< tn 

4 MR. CHEW: Objection; lack of foundation; 

5 asswnes facts not in ev idence; argumentative; and 

6 a complete ly inappropri ate use of correspondence 

7 from a medical docto r. 

8 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Counsel, let me just 

9 make a comment. With respect to the questions, 

IO you've established that she never saw this email, 

11 but yet your question c ites to it and then asks 

12 her to verify. And I think it' s confusing for the 

13 record. So if you're asking her to verify what 

14 the doctor said, that's one thing. If you're 

15 aski ng her, you know, fo r her independent 

16 understanding of these issues, l don't know why 

17 you need the Doctor's email in front of her, it's 

I 8just confusing for the record and possibly for the 

19 witness. And so I think it' s vague and I think 

20 it's mis leading, but I'm not -- with the exhibit 

21 to ask the question. 

22 Q Do you remember the question, Ms . Jacobs? 

3 whether Mr. Depp's fundamental issue with anger 

4 wor ened with the use of alcohol and drugs? 

5 MR. CHEW: Objection; lack of foundation. 

6 She's already said she said he never saw him use 

7 drugs and that everyo ne used alco ho l. So your 

8 question misstates the record ; lacks foundation ; 

9 assumes facts not in evidence. 

10 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Join. Go ahead, Tracey, 

11 if you can. 

12 A I'm so confused right now. I'm sorry, I 
13 don't understand the question. 
14 Q I'm trying really hard to get this moving, 

15 but there's an awful lot ofobjections, inc luding 

16 speaking objections, Ben, which are improper. In 

l 7 any event, let me try it again. 

18 In your observations of Mr. Depp having 

19 fundamental issues with anger and those worsening 

20 over the period of time you repre ented him, did 

21 you observe whether the use of alcohol increased 

22 those issues with anger? 
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61 I 63 I 
I MR. CHEW: Objection; lack of foundation. l satisfaction. P, lmpr. Char. Evid. s ~. Vague 

2 Ass umes facts not in evidence; and argumentative. 2 Is this cons istent with your observations 

3 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Join. 3 of Mr. Depp during your representation? 

4 A Again, I wasn't there and didn't witness 
5 it. 
6 Q Do you know what caused Mr. Depp's 

7 fundamental issue with anger? 

8 A No. 
9 MR. CHEW: Objection; lack of foundation; 

10 assumes facts not in evidence; argumentative. 

11 Q So --

12 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Tracey, did you say no? 

13 THE WITNESS: Yes, I said no. 

14 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Okay. 

15 Q So while your observed that Mr. Depp's 

16 fundamental issue with anger increased over the 

17 time of your representation, i it fair to say 

18 you're not sure what caused that increase? 

19 MR. CHEW: Objection; misstates the 

20 testimony; lack of personal knowledge; lack of 

21 foundation; argumentative. And , by the way, 

22 California rules apply to this deposition. 

62 

MR. MARMORSTEIN: Go ahead, Tracey. 

2 THE WITNESS : This is getting confusing 

3 with all these objections . 

4 MR. MARMORSTEIN: That's okay. Do you 

5 want it read back? Why don't you read the 

6 question back to her, Paul ? 

7 

8 
9 
10--

I I 
12 

13 

14 
15 

THE WITNESS: I'm sorry. 

MR. MARMORSTEIN: That's okay. 

THE WITNESS: Taking up a lot of time, but 

MR. MARMORSTEIN: Not your fault. 

THE WITNESS: -- yes, I do. 

MR. MARMORSTEIN: Okay. Paul , go ahead. 

(Requested portion read back.) 

A Yes. 1 -==== 

4 MR. CHEW: Objection; lack of foundation; 

5 lack of personal knowledge. She's never seen this 

6 document before. It's wild ly misleading for you 

7 to continue to use this. She's not competent to 

8 testify about this . She and her counsel have told 

9 you that repeatedly. So I don't know what we're 

10 doing here, but object on those grounds and that 

11 it's argumentative. 

12 Q Do you remember the que tion? 

13 A Yes, but I can't speak to this. This is 
14 - this is like a psychiatric question. I'm not 
15 qualified to be that. 
16 Q All ri_ght. I' ll take them one at a time. 

R 
SP 
UN 

17 Did you observe Mr. Depp lacking patience 

18 when he didn't get his need met? 
~

P, lmpr. 
Cha . Evid., 

S , Vague ,~ 
20 

MK. L,tll:', w: VOJecnon; vague. I 
A Yes, but - yes. D l~n, ('h~, ~ .. ;~ C:D 1/~ n .. o 

21 Q Okay. Did you observe Mr. Depp having 

22 issues with understand ing or appreciating delayed 

64 

gratification? 

2 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection; vague and 

3 ambiguous. 

4 MR. CHEW: Same objection. 

5 A I don't know. I really - again, I don't 
6 know the answer. 
7 MR. MARMO RSTEIN: Counsel once again, 

8 I've got to say, I know you've said you're trying 

9 to move this along but, you know, having her try 

10 and verify a doctor's email to another party word 

11 for word seems far afield from what Ms. Jacobs may 

12 or may not know about the is ues in this case, and 

13 I'd ask you once again to plea e move this along 

14 faster. 

15 MS. BREDEHOFT: I'm trying. And I would 

lncomp. 16 Q I'mgoingtoaskyoutogoalittle 16 respectfully say, it is not me that's s lowing it 

Desig., H F7 further down. And it says, there's also an issue 
lmpr. Ch r. . . 
Evid., SP 18 of patience. He 1s almost -- he is driven almost 

19 reflexively by his ID. He has no patience for not 

20 getting his needs met, has no understanding of 

21 delayed gratification, and is quite childlike in 

22 his reactions when he does not get immediate 

17 down. In any event --

18 MR. MARMORSTEIN: I think the questions --

19 I understand what yo u're saying about counsel and 

20 objections, I get that, but the questions 

21 themselves are getting bogged down on subject 

22 matter from a doctor that she can't and will not 
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65 

verify and, you know, I think he has limited 

2 know ledge here as to the issues in your case and 

3 we should move to those. 

4 MS. BREDEHOFT: As you know I'm entitled 

5 to ask the questions, and we have a fundamental 

6 disagreement between us on what's re levant and 

7 not, and I'm trying the case on behalf of 

8 Ms . Heard, you are not, respectfully, so I am 

9 going to keep moving and keep asking the que tions 

l O that I believe are re levant and necessary for my 

11 case. And I would appreciate it, if you would, 

12 try not keep repeating these admonishments o we 

13 can move it a lot faster. As you said, Ms. Jacobs 

14 has a very important job and a lot ofother thing 

15 to do , and we are way behind schedul e becau e of 

l 6all these objections. 

17 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Well, w hy don't we do 

18 this , Counsel, can we take five minutes and you 

19 and I can have a conversation really qui ck? 

20 MS. BREDEHOFT: Okay. 

2 1 (Briefdiscus ion tookplaceoff the 

22 record.) 

66 
THE VIDEOGRAPHER: It is 1:24 p.m. we go 

2 off the record . 

3 (Off the record from 1:24 p.m. to 1:31 

4 p.m.) 

5 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: It is the beginning of 

6 med ia number three of the te timony of Tracey 

7 Jacobs . It is 1 :31 p.m. We are back on the 

8 record . 

9 MS. BREDEHOFT: Paul, can you please read 

10 back the last question. 

11 (Requested portion read back.) 

12 MR. CHEW: Objection; vague; ambiguous . 

13 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Join. 

14 A Again, I'm not a psychiatrist. I can't 
15 answer that. 
16 Q All right. During the time that yo u 

17 represented Mr. Depp , d id there come a time that 

18 he was having difficulty recalling his lines? 

19 MR. CHEW: Objection; vague; confusing; 

20 and ambiguous. 

21 A I don't know. 
122 Q Do you recall a time while yo u were 

l representing Mr. Depp that he s tarted having 

2 
3 

1: 

earpieces so people could feed him his lines 

during filming? 

MR. CHEW: Objection; lack of foundation; 

a umes fact not in evidence. 

6 Yes. 
7 Q Do you recall when approximately that was? 

8 A I don't recaU. 
9 Q Do you remember what film or project it 

10 was? 

11 A I don't recall. 

67 

12 Q Do you recall approximately how many years 

13 while you were representing Mr. Depp that he used 

14 the earpiece to have his lines read? 

15 MR. CHEW: Objection; lack of foundation ; 

16 assumes facts not in evidence. 

17 A No, I don't recaU. 
18 Q Do you recall when that became a regular 

19 thing for Mr. Depp that he needed to use earpieces 

20 for lines being fed to him during filming? 

21 MR. CHEW: Objection; lack of foundation; 

22 assumes facts not in evidence. 

1 A Yes. 
L v_ u,o mat create proo1ems at any po ,m m 

3 any of his roles? 

4 MR. CHEW: Objection; vague; confusing; 

5 ambiguous. 

68 

6 MS. BREDEHOFT: Let me clarify it then you 

7 can do that. 

8 Q Did the use of earpieces by Mr. Depp 

9 create any kinds of issues in any of his ro les for 

l O filming? 

11 MR. CHEW : Objection; vague. 

12 A Not that I'm aware of. 
13 Q Do you recall who fed Mr. Depp his lines? 

14 A Yes. 
15 Q Who was that? 

16 A There were two people. Initially it was a 
17 guy name Sam Sarcar, and then I think it was 
18 Keenan - it's been so long - Keenan -

1

19 MR. MARMORSTEIN: If you recall, Tracey. 

20 A I don't recaU his last name, sorry. 
21 Q Do you recall what the [>OSition of Samcar 

22 was with respect to Mr. Depp . 
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A No. 
Q Did he work fo r Mr. Depp? 

A Yes. 
Q Was he a bodyguard or security person or 

somethin!! like that? 

,;q 71 

MS. BREDEHOFT: Alex, if you could bring 
? tl, :;it I In n Jp:;i<;p 

3 Q Ms. Jacobs, I'm going to -- I' Li take yo u 
4 to the second page first so you can just read the 
5 frame. And there's really just a part there. And 

Li es 
10 16: 

R 

1 
2 

3 
4 
5 

16 MR. CHEW: Objection; vague. 6 then here's where I'm go ing to direct your All 
Li es: 

7 attention, this is fro m Mr. Depp to yo u on P, 1; A No, he fed- he did the earpieces. 
Q That was his so le job for Mr. Depp? 8 Saturday, August 29, 20 15, do you see that? I pr. 

19 
110 

MR. CHEW: Objection. 9 A Yes. C ar. 

1
11 1 Q Okay. And Mr. Depp -- when Mr. Depp would E id., 

/A, A As far as I know. 
11 ~ Okay. 1 hat's tair. How abo ut the 11 write to yo u in emails would he regularly have La of 

12 individual named Keenan, do you know whether 12 parts of it all cap itals and exclamation marks? 
13 Keenan had any other ro le with Mr. Depp other tha 1 13 A Yes. 
14 feeding him his lines thro ugh the earp ieces? 14 Q And would you agree that that typically 
1 i:. A T tion't lrno\N 1 5 reflects that he might be a little angry and 

1
16 Q Okay. Mr. Depp had a relationship with It 5 express ing that anger with --
17 H::irvPv WPin<.tPin riiri hP not? I 1 7 MR. CHEW: Objection; calls --

1

18 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection; vague and 18 Q -- capitals and exclamation marks? 
19 amb iguous. 19 MR. CHEW: Objection; lack of fo undation; 

120 A Yes. 20 lack of personal knowledge; calls fo r speculation. 
1? 1 MR CRF.W· Ohiec tion: v::iQ11e. 7 1 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Join. 

;.:l2:2 _ _::0:..._:W.:_l::1a:.:t__:w:..:a:.s_:th:.:.:a:t ..:.:re::la:.:t=io.:n:.:shio: ·:.?:_· --::::::====----,2: I think he was trying to make a point. I 

3 
4 

5 
6 

1; 

A I don't know exactly. They worked 
together. They did some movies together. 

Q Do you recall which movie Mr. Depp did 
with Mr. Weinstein? 

A Chocolat, a movie caUed The Libertine. 
Those are the onlv two I can recaU. 

Q Do you have a recollection of issues 
associated with London Fields? 

70 

9 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection; vague and 
LO ambiguous. 
1 1 1\.Kl) r'1TTC\ l / . r"\ l- :" .... .. : ......... . . . .... ,...,.,, ,.,, .... ..... ....1 ...... ...- 1- : ....... ..... . . ... 

don't know if it was anger. 
2 Q So it says here, I need you to get to 
3 fucking Harley's regarding London Fields. They 
4 are go ing to be premiering it at the Toronto Film 
5 Festival. What does Harley's mean? 

6 A What does what mean? 
7 Q Harley's . He says fucking Harley's. What 
8 is he talking about? 

]

9 A I think he's referring to - I don't know. 

P rs . 
Kn w., 

SP 

R 

I 
lmpr. 

Desig. 

R, Vague, Arnbi~ ~ 
-·~-· --~~ ·· · __ ..,.J--·· -~·, ·-o-- -~- -·· ·_,. ·o- -- - ... . 

A Vo" 

10 I think he might be referring to the daughter of a 
11 director friend of his, but I'm not sure. 
12 Q All right. Despite our legal -- letter of 

13 Q What do you recall? 

14 A The unhappiness with the director. 
15 Q Do you have a reco llection of Mr. Depp 
16 wanting to have a no nudity clau e for Ms. Heard? 
17 MR. CHEW: Objection; lack of fo undation; 
18 a urnes facts not in evidence. 
19 A I don't know as I didn't make that 
20 particular deal. 
21 Q I'm going to ask you to take a look at 
22 Deposition Exrubit 8. 

13 legal action, if they use their ver ion and not 
14 the Matthew Cullen vers ion, it is in Amber's 
15 co ntract that there would be no nudity and her 
16 fucking agents are weak and insipid. Also, they 
17 recall that I would not allow them to use any of 
18 my work in the film as I agreed to do the film 
19 based on Matthew. Will you please call these 
20 motherfuckers and you and Jake get on this 
21 immed iately? Does that help refresh your 
22 reco llection about what the issue was? 
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73 

1 A What issue are you referring to? 
75 

1 Festiva l. 
2 Q W hat -- was the prob lem with London Fields 2 Q All right. And then Johnny's coming back, 

3 that they used Amber's nud ity and were going to 

4 put it in the Toronto Film Festival? 

5 A As I said, I didn't make this deal, but I 

3 it must be shut down or I will sue them 18 ways to 

4 fucking Sunday. These people are nobodies in this 

5 business and they should be made to understand 

6 do know the one thing that was stated is they were 
7 not allowed to use his name in any way, shape, or 

8 form to promote the fiJm, and that would include 
9 the Toronto Film Festival. 
10 Q Okay. And do yo u have a recollection of 

11 him also talking about a no nudity provision for 

12 Amber? 

13 A N o. 
14 Q So do you have an understanding of what 

15 he's talking about with the Matthew C ullen 

16 vers ion? 

17 A I think Matthew Cullen - again, this is 
18 almost six years a20. I believe -

6 that we will ruin them instantly, with many number 

7 of exclamation marks . Did you interpret that a 

8 him being -- Johnny Depp being angry? 

9 A No-
10 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection; calls for 

11 speculation. 

12 A No-
13 MR. CHEW: Same objection; calls for 

14 speculation. 

15 A No. I interpreted it as class ic Johnny 
16 Depp, hyperbole trying to make his point. I 
17 didn't take it as any more than that. 
18 Q Okay. 

19 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Only if you recall, 19 MS . BREDEHOFT: We can take this one down, 

20 Tracey. I don't want yo u to speculate. 

2 1 THEWITNESS : Idorecall. 

22 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Okay. 

74 
~ 

1 A Matthew Cullen was the director. I don't 
2 know about nudity, although clearly that was the 
3 case according to his understanding, and I guess 
4 he was trying to get me to kill it. 
5 Q Okay. And then you responded to him, I'm 

6 already on it with lawyers and Marty Stinger, have 

20 Alex. 

2 1 Q Now, I'm go ing to jump back to the Pirates 

22 of the Canbbean. You indicated that yo u went to 

l Australia a second time; correct? 

2 A Yes. 
3 Q Do you remember approximately where that 

4 was in the filming? 

5 A No. 
6 Q Okay. And what d id you do on that second 

7 spoken to Matthew C ullen twice this AM. He also 7 trip? 

8 wants it stopped. We are doing everything to shut 8 A I went to vis it Johnny. He was back. 
9 this down. Was there another version of London 9 Q Okay. Was Amber Heard there at the time? 

10 Fields -- 10 A Yes. 
11 A Oh, I'm sorry, I have to correct myself. 11 Q Did you visit at a ll with Amber Heard on 

12 He made a typo here, which is why- Harley, he 12 that occasion? 

13 means Hanley. They were the producers. 13 A I didn't vis it with her, but I saw her 
14 Q Okay. So do you have an unders tand ing 14 sitting in his trailer. 
15 whether there were two d ifferent vers ions of 15 Okay. Did yo u have any conversations with 

16 London Fields? 16 Mr. Bruckheimer or others on the set about 

17 A Yes. 17 Mr. Depp' s performance that second trip? 

18 Q And who wa promoting the other version? [ 18 MR. CHEW: Objection; calls for hearsay. 

19 A Matthew Cullen had his vers ion, which is 19 A Yes. 

76 

20 the director's cut, w hich is what Johnny wanted 20 Q What do yo u recall? ---=,;=----===== 
2 1 shown. And the Hanleys, the producers, had their 21 A T hat I -
22 cut, which is what they gave to the Toronto Film 22 MR. CHEW: Objection; calls for hearsay. 
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77 

l THE WITNESS : Should I answer the 

2 question? 

3 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Yeah. 

Lines 4-11 : 4 A Yes. And I said to Jerry Bruckheimer, 
H, R, P 5 you're the producer - this has already been in 

Lines 12_14: 6 the public record - you're the producer, it's 
R, P 7 your job to get him to the set on time. And he 

8 looked at me and said, you're his agent, that's 
9 your job. Given that I live in Los Angeles and 
10 they had been in Australia for months, I said, I 
11 don't think it's my job. 
12 Q So is it fair to say that Mr. Depp was 

13 continuing to show up late or not show up at all 

14 on set? 

15 MR. CHEW: Objection; lack of foundation; 

16 assumes facts not in evidence. 

17 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Join. 

R, P 18 A Yes. 
19 Q Did that continue to be a problem 

20 throughout the filming of Pirates 5, Mr. Depp not 

2 l showing up or showing up very late on set? 

22 MR. CHEW: Objection; lack of foundation; 

78 
l lack of personal knowledge. 

2 THE WITNESS : Should I answer? 

3 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Go ahead. 

4 A Yes. 
5 Q Did you have any conversations with anyone 

6 at Disney about Johnny Depp doing a Pirates of the 

7 Caribbean 6? 

8 MR. CHEW: Objection; calls for hearsay. 

9 A Yes. 
l O Q What do you reca ll and when? 

l l MR. CHEW: Objection; calls for hearsay. 

12 A I don't recall when. I recall again, that 
13 was a conversation with Sean Bailey. I don't 
14 recall the specifics, but they were in the 
15 preliminary stages of talking about getting a 
16 screenplay for Pirates 6. 
l 7 Q Do you recall whether your conversation 

18 with Sean Bailey was before Pirates 5 had finished 

19 filming or during? No, I said that badly. That 

20 was a bad question. I'll do that again. 

21 Do you recall whether your conversation 

22 with Sean Bailey about a potential screenplay for 

79 

l Pirates 6 was before Pirates 5 finished filming or 

2 after? 

3 A I don't recall. 
4 Q All right. And what do you recall Sean 

5 Bailey saying about Mr. Depp being part of 

6 Pirates 6? 

7 MR. CHEW: Objection; calls for hearsay. 

8 A I don't think the ca ll was that specific 
9 about Johnny's potential involvement. 
l O Q Did you ever have a conver ation with 

l l anyone at Disney ind icating that Johnny Depp was 

12 going to be considered for Pirates 6? 

13 MR. CHEW: Objection; calls for hearsay. 

14 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Can we have the question 

15 read back? I think there was a cut out. 

16 (Requested portion read back.) 

l 7 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Thank you. Go ahead, 

18 Tracey. 

19 MR. CHEW: Objection; calls for hearsay. 

20 A I only spoke with -
2 l MR. CHEW: I'm sorry, objection; calls for 

22 hearsay. 

l 

2 
3 

MR. MARMORSTEIN: Go ahead . 

A I only spoke to Sean Bailey at Disney. 
Q And did you have more than one 

4 conversation with Sean Bailey? 

5 A Yes. 
6 Q Approximately how many conversations did 

7 you have with Sean Bailey at Disney about Johnny 

8 Depp being included in Pirates 6? 

9 A I don't reca ll. 
l O Q More than five? 

11 A No. 
12 Q More than ten? 

13 A No. 
l 4 Q In any of the conversations you had with 

80 

15 Sean Bailey about Johnny Depp and P irates 6, did 

16 Sean Bailey indicate that he wanted Johnny Depp in 

17 Pirates 6? 

l 8 MR. CHEW: Objection; calls for hearsay. 

19 A I don't recall. 
20 Q Was Sean Bailey in your recollection, 

21 noncommittal about whether Johnny Depp would be in 

22 Pirates 6? 
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MR. CHEW: Objec tion; calls for hearsay. 

2 It' s also vague. 

3 A I don't think we had a really specific 
4 conversation about Johnny's involvement or 
5 potential lack of it. 
6 Q For Pirates? 

7 A Uh-huh. 
8 Q Jus t yes, for the record? I'm sorry. You 

9 said uh-huh, I ju t wanted to make sure --

81 

10 MR. MARMORSTErN: You have to say yes, 

11 Tracey. 

12 A Yes. 
13 Q Okay. Great. In the contracts that 

14 Johnny Depp had for Pirates, did he have any kind 

15 of provision that was giving him an advantage or 

16 telling him he would be considered for Pirates 6? 

17 MR. CHEW: Objection; vague; confusing; 

18 calls for a legal conclus ion. 

19 A I don't know. 
20 Q Do you know whether there was a pay or 

2 1 play provision for Pirates 6 for Johnny Depp? 

22 MR. CHEW: Objection; calls for a legal 

conclusion. 

2 A No. 

3 Q l asked that so badly l don't know what 

4 your answer means, and I apologize. 

82 

83 

I and pay or play? 

2 A Pay and play would mean that if the movie 
3 was not made he would still be guaranteed his sum 
4 of money. 
5 Q And pay or play? 

6 A Would mean that he's entitled to the money 
7 if they make the movie, that he would be paid with 
8 the movie going ahead to production. 
9 Q And is it your best recollection that P, 

L ck IO there was not a pay and play or pay or play for 

11 Mr. Depp for Pirates 6? 
of P rs . 

12 A I think - I don't know. And it's been at 
13 least six years. 
14 Q But yo ur bes t recollection? 

15 MR. MARMORSTEIN: She doesn't know. 

16 MS . BREDEHOFT: I'm ju t trying to --

17 MR. CHEW: Objection; asked and answered. 

18 MR. MARMORSTEIN: I agree. I join that 

19 objection. When she say she doe n't reca ll, to 

20 ask her if she recalls is a bit argumentative. 

2 1 MS . BREDEHOFT: f'm no t trying to be 

22 argumentative, I'm just trying to c lose the loop 

on this one --

2 MR. MARMORSTErN: It's closed. 

3 MS. BRED EHOFT : -- I think Ms. Jacobs 

4 testified that she didn't think that there would 
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Kn w. 

SP, Lack 5 A I sa id I don't recall if there was a pay 5 have been under the circumstances, so I'm just 

6 asking her best recollection now that I have of Pers. 6 or play provision for Pirates 6. I doubt there 
Know. 7 would have been, but I don't know. 7 clarification on those two terminologies. 

8 Q And why do you doubt that there would have 8 MR. MARMORSTErN: Fair enough. Tracey, do 

9 been? 9 you know the question? Why don't you read it 

10 A Because it was too far in the future and IO back, Paul? 

11 studios generally won't operate that way unless 11 T HE WIT ESS: Sorry. 

12 there's an extraordinary circumstance. 12 MR. MARMORST IN: That's okay. ot your 

13 Q And when you say operate that way, what 13 fault. 

14 are you talking about? 14 THE WITNESS: So many interruptions. 

MR. CHEW: Asked and answered. 

THE WITNESS: I did. 

15 A People generally don't give pay or play. 15 

16 It would be a pay and play commitment to something 16 

17 unknown as far as specific date of shooting or if 

18 in fact it was even going to get made. So l would 

19 actually venture to say no, but you'd have to ask 

20 a lawver to look at the contract. 

2 1 Q I don't have the contract, but in any 

22 event what is the difference between pay and play 

17 Q I'm sorry? 

18 A No. No, I do n't recall. Yo u'd require 

19 someone to go thro ugh his contracts, which we made 

20 that deal over seven, eight years ago . 

2 1 Q AIi right. And as you sit here today, can Lacks Fci md./ 

22 you recall anyone at Disney committing in any way Pers. 1 now. 
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Lacks F~4ndtfiat Johnny Depp wou ld be in Pirates 6? 
Pers. Knff · A No. 

3 Q Did you have any communications with Debby 

1

1

2

1 We go off the record . 
(Off the record from 1:54 p .m. to 2:02 

3 p .m.) 

87 

4 Lloyd or Aaron Burham during the time that you 4 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: It is 2:02 p.m. We are 

5 represented Johnny Depp? 5 back on the record . 

6 A Who are those people? I don't know. 6 MS. BREDEHOFT: Just so we can memorialize 

7 Q They're nurses that work with Dr. Kipper. 

8 A No. 
9 Q How freq uently did you communicate with 

7 this on the record. Off the record , Mr. Chew and 

8 r agreed, Ms . Jacobs's counsel had ind icated some 

9 co ncern because they don't know the 

10 Christy Dembrowski during your representation of 

11 Mr. Depp? 

12 A Initially, quite a bit. She wasn't his 
13 assistant until five or so years in. I think I'd 
14 given this statement in my deposition prior. And 
15 then in the last several years she was impossible 
1 to get on the phone or email. 
17 Q Ms. Jacobs, just so you know, I don't have 

10 confidentiality provision or something, so they 

11 are instructing her not to answer as a way to try 

12 to reso lve this and so we don't have to keep this 

13 deposition open they suggested that we mutually 

14 agreed to mark this part confidential, and 

15 Ms. Jacobs's declined. , 

16 Q So just so we have the record , Ms. Jacobs , 

17 yo u are refusing to answer that question of how 

18 your prior depositio n. We requested them of 

19 Mr. Depp, they have not been provided to us. So 

20 I'm at a d isadvantage, I don't have those. 

18 much Mr. Depp was paid for the Christian Dior, how 

19 much the contract was worth; is that correct? 

21 MR. CHEW: That's actually not true. You 

22 should check with your office staff, Elaine. You 

can do that during a break You've got 

2 everything. 

3 MS. BREDEHOFT: Okay. 
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20 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Just to clarify the 

21 record, I suggested that the parties identify and 

22 get aho ld of the Dior contract which has whatever 

numbers are in it. I've instructed my client not 

2 to answer questions about the contents of an 

3 agreement that may have confidentiality terms, and 

4 Q Now, were you involved at all in the 4 I don't want her to breac h confidentiality. 
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5 negotiation of the Christian Dior contract with 5 Nobody in the depositio n has provided any of those 

6 Mr. Depp? 6 contracts for our review. So I sugges ted counsel 

7 A Yes. But it was another wo man who ran the 7 alteratively get a copy of the contract which has 

8 department named Lisa Jacobso n, who 's no lo nger at 8 the amount which will speak for itself so that 

9 UTA. 9 Ms . Jacobs doesn't have to opine on what it might 

10 Q What was your understanding of what that l O have in the contract. So f am instructing her not 

11 contract was with Mr. Depp? 11 to answer. And, Tracey, you're accepting and 

12 A What do yo u mean what's my understanding? 12 taking my instruction; correct? 

13 I know how much mo ney he was go ing to make. 13 THE WITNESS: Correct. 

14 Q Okay. How much money was Mr. Depp going 14 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Thank you. 

15 to make on the Christian Dior contract? 15 Q Ms . Jacobs, d id you work at all with Sean 

16 THE WITNESS: Am I okay to state this? 16 Betz while you were representing Mr. Depp? 

17 MR. MARMORSTErN: If you have a concern, 17 A Is that his bodyguard? 
18 maybe we should go off the record and we can talk 18 Q Yes. One of them. 

19 about it. Can we take five minutes, Counse l? 19 A No. I just know who he is. 
20 MR. CHEW: Certainly. 20 Q Did you work at all with Steven Deuters 

21 MS. BREDEHOFT : Sure. 2 1 while you were representing Mr. Depp? 

22 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: Okay. It is I :54 p.m. 22 A Yes. 
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1 Q In what capac ity? 

2 A He was Johnny's assistant. One of the 
3 Johnny's assistants. 
4 Q And so what ro le did he play vis-a-vis 

5 your representation of Mr. Depp, talking about 

6 Steven Deuters? 

7 A He was supposed to communicate what l 
8 needed to Johnny. 

RQ 

9 Q And over how many years was Steven Deuters 

10 your personal communique to Johnny Depp? 

11 A I don't recall. 

1

12 Q How well did those communications work 

13 with Steven Deuters communicating to Johnny Depp ? 

14 A So -
15 MR. CHEW: Objec tio n; calls for 

16 speculation; vague. 

17 A So-so. 
18 Q What do you mean by that? 

19 A Sometimes the information was conveyed and 
20 other times I couldn't get answers. 
2 1 Q You indicated that you had a lot of 

22 difficulty reaching Mr. Depp in the las t few 

I years. Why was that? 

2 A I don't know. 
3 Q And was it a very consistent pattern that 

4 you were having difficulty reaching Mr. Depp in 

5 the last few years of your representation? 

6 A Yes. 
7 Q Did you ever wo rk with Nathan Ho lmes? 

8 A Yes. 
9 Q In what capacity? 

10 A An assistant of Johnny's. 
11 Q And was his role s imilar to Mr. Deuters in 

12 communications with Mr. Depp? 

13 A Theoretically. 
14 Q What do you mean? 

15 A I don't know. I don't know how they 
1 divided their responsibilities. It depended on 
17 who I was able to get on the phone. 
18 Q So you try one, if you couldn't get that 

19 one, you'd try the other one and you try to get 

20 through? 

21 A Yes. 
22 Q Okay. And how was Mr. Holmes at getting 

90 
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1 back to you and being respons ive? 

2 A I don't know. Again, I don't know. 
3 Q Was --

4 MR. MARMOR ST EIN: Counsel, I'm getting 

5 another kind of muffled sound from yo ur audio. Is 

6 it anything --

7 MS . BREDEHOFT : T hank yo u. I'm not sure 

8 what's happening. But thank you for telling me 

9 that. 

10 Q Was the communications with Nathan Holmes 

11 similar to the communications with Steven Deuters 

12 in how successful -- yo u were so-so successful on 

13 getting through to Mr. Depp? 

ll4 MR. MARMOR STEIN: Objectio n; vague. 

15 Q I'm sorry? 

16 A Yes, they were the same. 
17 ~ 1J1d yo u ever -- d1d you commurucate with 

18 Malco lm Connolly? 

19 A Is he a bodyguard also? 
20 Q It's not c lear to me what he is , but he 

2 1 certainly worked with him. 

22 MR. MARMOR ST EIN: Do yo u recall the name? 
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1 A Malcolm. I didn't kno w his last name. 

2 Malcolm worked with Jerry Judge, who is no longer 

3 around, sad to say. 

4 Q And do you reca ll any of your interactions 

5 with Malcolm? 

6 A No. 

7 Q Have you spoken with Adam Waldman? 

8 A Never. 

9 Q Do you even know who Adam Waldman is? 

10 A Yes. 

11 Q What is your understanding? 

12 A That he's Johnny's lawyer who advises him 

13 on all things Jo hnny. 

14 Q Was Adam Waldman Johnny Depp's lawyer at 

15 any po int while you represented Johnny Depp? 

16 A No. 

17 Q And when you said what your understanding 

18 of Mr. Waldman's ro le with Johnny Depp is, how did 

19 you come about that understanding? 

20 A He was quoted in many interviews with 

21 Johnny, and it seemed like he was at his side 

22 quite a bit. 
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l Q Thank yo u. Were yo u aware that Mr. Depp 

2 used the tenn to describe you as bald pood le? 

3 MR. MARMORSTEIN: I'm sorry, Elaine, I 
4 can't hear you. 

5 A What? 
6 Q Were you aware --

7 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Hold on, Tracey. I need 

8 to get the audio first before we proceed . 

9 MS. BREDEHOFT: Can you hear me now? 

10 MR. MARMORSTEIN: I can hear you. Maybe 

11 it's your proximity to the microphone o r 

12 something, but something is on with the 

13 microphone. 

14 MS. BREDEHOFT: Ben, are you having 

15 trouble? 

16 MR. CHEW: It's a little faint, but I can 

17 hear yo u now. 

18 MS. BREDEHOFT: Okay. All right. I'll 

19 try to -- because I know my volume comes from the 

20 camera. I keep learning all these lovely things 

21 in the age of Zoom. 

22 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Elaine, maybe if you 
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I just s it a little bit closer. I'd appreciate it. 

2 MS. BREDEHOFT: I just pulled up . By all 

3 means , tell me if you can't hear me. 

4 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Do yo u want to reask or 

5 should we read back? 

6 MS. BREDEHOFT: Paul, were yo u ab le to get 

7 my question? 

8 THE WITNESS : I didn't hear the question. 

9 I heard part of it. 

10 MS . BREDEHOFT: Can you repeat, Paul? 

11 THE REPORTER: I can say I couldn't get 

12 the last word or two. 

13 MS. BREDEHOFT: Then I'll ask it a_gain. 

1

14 Q Were you aware that Mr. Depp referred to 

15 yo u as quote, ba ld pood le, end of quote? 

16 MR. CREW: Objection; lack of foundation; 

17 assumes facts not in evidence. 

18 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Join. 

19 A No. 
20 Q Were you aware that Mr. Depp referred to 

21 Ron Berkie as, quote, litt le prince Jew, end of 

22 quote? 
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I MR. CHEW: Objection; lack of foundation; 

2 assumes facts not in evidence --

3 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Join. 

4 MR. CHEW: -- gratuitous ly inflammatory 

5 misstating of the record . 

6 A No. 
-

7 Q Who is Ron Berkie? 

8 A He's a wealthy financier. 
9 Q Did you work with Ron Berkie at a ll? 

10 A Never. 
11 Q l'm going to ask you to take a look at 

12 Deposition Exhibit I 0. 

13 A You know what, I need to take a break. 
14 Can I take a break, please, for a couple minutes? 
15 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Sure. 

16 Q Do you want ten minutes? What do you 

17 want? 

18 A That would be good. Thanks. Sorry. 
19 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: It is 2:11 p.m. We go 

20 off the record. 

2 1 (Off the record from 2: 11 p.m. to 2:22 

22 p.m.) 
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I THE VIDEOGRAPHER: It is 2:22 p.m. We are 

2 back on the record . 

3 Q Ms. Jacob , were you able to observe 

4 Mr. Depp's treatment of women he was dating or in 

5 relationships with during the time yo u represented 

6 him? 

7 
8 

A I don't recall. 
Q Okay. And given that, do you know one way 

9 or the other whether Mr. Depp has been violent or 

10 abusive with any of the women that he was dating 

11 or in a relationship with? 

12 A No. 
13 Q Were yo u invo lved at all in any of the 

14 allegations made by Ms. Heard that Mr. Depp 

15 physica lly abused and engaged in domes tic vio lence 

16 of her? 

17 MR. CHEW: Objection --

18 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection; vague and 

19 ambiguous. 

20 MR. CHEW: -- vague. Yeah, I join that 

21 objection. 

22 A No. 
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MR. MARMORSTEIN: You as ked if she was 

2 invo lved in the allegations? 

3 MS. BREDEHOFT: You know, good po int. Did 

4 you -- let me ask that a little d ifferently. I 

5 think I'm s till go ing to get the same answer, I' m 

6 guess ing. 

7 Q Did you at any time participate or become 

8 invo lved in any aspect of the allegations made by 

9 Ms. Heard against Mr. Depp that he engaged in 

IO domestic violence and abuse of her? 

11 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection; vague. 

12 MR. CHEW: Objec tion; vague. 

13 MR. MARMORSTEIN: You can answer. 

14 A No. 
15 Q Okay. Do you know whether there were any 

16 d iscuss ions between Ms. Heard and Mr. Depp about a 

17 prenup? 

18 A No. 
19 Q Do you know whether there were any 

20 discuss ions between Ms. Heard and Mr. Depp about a 

21 pos tnup? 

22 A No. 
98 

Q Did you ever kno w a woman named Rochelle 

2 Hathaway? 

3 A No. 
4 Q How frequently did you come in contact 

5 with Amber Heard? 

6 A Almost not at all. 
7 Q How many times would yo u say over the 

8 course of their relationship that you even saw or 

9 spoke with Amber Heard ? 

10 A I don't recall. 
11 Q Less than 10 --

12 A Yes. 
13 Q -- less than 20? 

14 A Less than ten. 
15 Q Okay. You testified at the beginning of 

16 this deposition that while you represented 

17 Mr. Depp he was, I think, the bigges t s tar in the 

18 world . Do you recall that testimony? 

19 A Yes. 
20 Q How would you descnbe Mr. Depp' s 

21 reputation today? 

22 MR. CHEW: Objection; calls for 
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I speculation. 

2 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Jo in. 

3 A I no longer work with him I don't know. j R, P 

4 Q But as a talent agent out there, you're L ne\~ 

5 aware o f reputations of the s tars, are you not? Arn11mo t:,t ;HO 

l6 MR. CHEW: Objec tion; argwnentative. I 
7 A Yes. 1 R, P, 
8 Q Okay. And what would you say the Lin s 8-9: 

9 reputation of Johnny Depp is today? SP 

10 MR. CHEW: Objection; asked and answered ; 

11 calls fo r speculation. 

12 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Join. 

13 A These lawsuits don't help. R t SP 

1

14 Q What do yo u mean by that? 1 
15 A I mean it's endless, but I don't know F, S 
16because I'm not out there selling him anymore. 
17 Q Okay. I'm going to as k you to take a look R, p 

18 at Exhibit l 0. And I am asking you to take a look 

19 at this. This was the lawsuit filed by Mr. Depp 

20 versus The Mandel Company on January 31, 201 9. 

21 A I think it's 2017. 
22 MR. MARMORSTEIN: 2017. 
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Q ' 17, you're right, I just misspoke. I R, P, 

2 apologi ze. Thank you for correcting me. When you AF 

3 ·ust said a minute ago, M s. Jacobs, these lawsuits 

4 don't he lp, would the lawsuit that Mr. Depp 

5 brought against The Mandel Company have been one 

6 of those you were referring to? 

7 A I was referring to all of them. 
8 Q And this was a cross compla int that was 

9 brought by The Mandel Company against Mr. Depp, 

l O and it makes a llegations through these fi rs t few 

11 paragraphs, and I'm going to go through them just 

12 a little s low ly and I'm going to try to move this 

13 a long by not reading things to you and j us t aski ng 

14 you questions, but were you famili ar w ith 

15 Mr. Depp's spending habits w hile you were 

16 representing him? 

17 MR. CHEW: And j ust, David, so your client 

18 is aware, the vast majori ty of the a llegations 

19 that Ms. Bredehoft is refe rri ng to were stricken 

20 by Judge Boudae, w hich is a matter ofrecord. So 

2 1 much of w hat your c li ent is be ing show n has been 

22 stricken by the tr ial judge in that case. 
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l MS. BREDEHOFT: And why does that have 

2 anythi ng to do w ith my question, Ben? 

3 MR. CHEW: Because you conti nue to show 

4 this w itness docW11ents that she did not receive, 

5 was not copied on, is not competent to testify, 

6 and then you're show ing her a docW11ent which has 

7 been stricken by Judge Boudae in Los Angeles . So 

8 I just think that -- and you've been advised of 

9 this before and yet you continue to show the same 

lOdocwnent. Butljustthinkthathercounsel is 

11 entitled to know that. 

12 MS. BREDEHOFT : Can you -- can you repeat 

13 the question, please, so we can move forward . 

14 MR. CHEW: There was no question. 

15 MS. BREDEHOFT: Yes , there was. 

16 (Requested portion read back) 

17 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Are you asking 

18 independent of the docwnent, Counsel? 

19 MS. BREDEHOFT: Yes. And so I'll ask a 

20 clean auestion. 

1

2 1 Q Were you fa mili ar with Mr. Depp's spending 

22 habi ts during the course of the time you _ 

I I represented him? 
102 

MR. CHEW: Objection. 2 
3 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Tracey, before -- join. 

4 Tracey, just so you're c lear, the question has --

5 is not askmg you to verify anything in the 

6 attachment being shown, so just foc us on the 

7 question, not the attachment. 

8 A Yes and no. 
9 Q And what do you mean by that? 

10 A Yes, I was aware that he spent a lot of 
11 money, but no, I had no idea on what 
12 Q Okay. Was there ever an occasion that you 

13 spoke with Mr. Depp about his spend ing habits and 

14 trying to curb those in any way? 

15 A No. 
16 Q Do you have any reco llection of having a 

17 meeting with Mr. Depp and Mr. Berkle relating in 

18 any way to Mr. Depp's spending habits and 

19 financial situation? 

20 MR. CHEW: Objection; assumes facts not in 

21 evidence. 

22 A I've never met Ron Berkle, no. 

103 

I Q Did you work with any associate -- did you 

2 work with any other peop le in your co mpany that 

3 ass isted you with Mr. Depp? 

4 A From time to time, yes. 
5 Q Who -- who from your agency also worked 

6 with Mr. Depp with you? 

7 A Jim Burkus. 
8 Q Yeah, that's who I mean. Did you and Jim 

9 Burkus ever have a meeting -- a meeting with 

10 Mr. Depp in whjch you di cu sed rus financial 

l l s ituation and spending habits? 

12 A No. 
13 Q Do you have a recollection of meeting with 

14 Mr. Depp and Mr. Burkus sometime in February of 

15 2016 about -- I don't know what about -- do you 

16 have a recollection of that meeting? 

17 A I don't recall. 
18 Q In February 20 16, what was Mr. Depp 

19 workmg on? 

20 A I don't recall. 
2 1 Q Okay. 

22 MS. BREDEHOFT: Alex, can you please bring 

104 

up Deposition Exhibit 23 . 

2 Q And while that's being brought up , I'm 

3 going to ask you, Ms . Jacob , have you ever seen 

4 Mr. Depp behave in an angry manner and a violent 

5 manner? 

6 

7 
8 

MR. CHEW: Objection; vague. 

MR. MARMORSTEIN: Also compound . Join. 

MS. BREDEHOFT: I'll ask them separate. 

9 Q Have you ever seen Mr. Depp engage in 

l O angry behavior? 

11 A Yes. 
12 MR. CREW: Objection; vague. 

13 Q How often? 

14 A I don't recall. 
15 Q Would you say pretty often or rare? 

16 MR. CHEW: Objection; vague. What is 

17 angry behavior? 

18 A I can't answer. I don't know. 
19 Q Have you ever seen Mr. Depp engage in 

20 violent behavior? 

21 A No. 
22 Q Okay. I'm going to a k you to watch this 
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1 video. 

2 MS. BREDEHOFT: Alex, if you could play 

3 it, that would be great. 

4 

5 
6 

(From v ideo.) 

Motherfucker. Motherfucker. 

\Vhathappened? \Vhathappened? 

7 happened thi s morning, you know that. 

8 
9 

\Vere you even here? 

No. 

Nothing 

1 O So then nothing happened to you this 

11 morning. 

12 Yeah, you're right. I just woke up and 

13 you were so sweet and nice. \Ve're not even 

14 fighting this morning. All I did was say sorry. 

15 Did something happen to you this morning? 

16 I don't think so. 

17 No, that's the thing. 

18 Do you want to see crazy, I' 11 give you 

19 fucking crazy. Here's crazy. Oh, you' re crazy. 

20 You're crazy. 

21 Have you drunk this who le thing this 

22 morning? 

l 

2 
3 

4 

You got this thing going? 

I just started it. 

Oh, really? 

Yes. 

5 Really? You see that shit on me 

6 motherfucker. 

7 No, I didn't. You were smashing shit. 

8 Ass . 

9 Q Ms . Jacobs , have you ever seen this video 

10 before? 

11 A Yes. 
12 Q On what occasion? 

13 A When it was released. 
14 Q Have you ever seen Mr. Depp behave in the 

15 manner that's reflected in this video? 

16 MR. CHE\V: Objection --
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17 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection; vague and 

18 ambiguous. 

19 MR. CHE\V: -- a ked and answered; lack of 

20 foundation; as urnes facts not in evidence. 

21 A No. 
22 Q \Vhen did you fir t become aware that Amber 

107 

I Heard was alleging that Mr. Depp had physica lly 

2 abused her? 

3 A I don't recaU. 
4 Q I'm going to ask --

5 MS. BREDEHOFT: Alex, you can take this 

6 one down. Can you bring up Depo ition Exhibit 11 , 

7 plea e. 

8 Q Ms. Jacobs , T'm going to ask you to take a 

9 look at what ha been marked as Jacobs Exhibit 11. 

10 It's a request for domestic violence restraining 

11 order filed on behalf of Amber Laura Depp, it says 

12 here, against John Christopher Depp, [I on May 27, 

13 and that date' s a little hard to read, but it's 

14 2016. 

15 \Vere you aware of Ms. Heard's allegations 

16 of domestic violence and abuse by Johnny Depp 

17 before she filed this request for domestic 

18 violence restraining order in May of2016? 

19 A No. 
20 Q Do you recall how soon after this was 

21 filed that you learned about these allegations? 

22 A At the same time. 
108 

I Q And how did you learn about these 

2 allegations? 

3 A I read about them. 
4 Q Did you have any communications with 

5 Mr. Depp about this request for domestic violence 

6 restraining order or any of the allegations of 

7 domestic violence made by Amber Heard? 

8 A No. 
9 Q To this day, have you had any 

IO conversations with Mr. Depp about Amber Heard' s 

11 allegations of domestic violence and abuse by 

12 Mr. Depp? 

13 A No. 
14 Q Did you have any involvement with the 

15 lawyers representing Mr. Depp in interviewing any 

16 of the potential witnesse ? 

17 A No. 
18 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection; vague. 

19 Q Did you have any invo lvement in assisting 

20 with any press releases or interviews with the 

21 press, anything of that nature in connection with 

22 Amber Heard's allegations of domestic violence 
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1 against her by Johnny Depp? 

2 A No. 
3 MS. BREDEHOFT : Okay. You can go ahead 

4 and take this off, Alex. Thank you. All right. 

5 I'm going to ask you to bring up Deposition 

6 Exhibit 12. 

7 Q Ms . Jacobs , I'm going to ask you to take a 

8 look at what ha been marked as Deposition 

9 Exhibit 12. Have you ever seen this picture 

10 before? 

11 A Not this exact picture. 
12 Q Okay. And just to direct your attention, 

13 the metadata is from May 21st, 2016 at 9:24 p.m. 

14 Do you recognize this as Amber Heard? 

15 A Yes. 
16 MR. CHEW: Objection to the form of the 

17 question; lack of personal knowledge; lack of 

18 expertise. She's not a makeup artist, she's not 

19 an expert. She's a talent agent. 

20 Q Do you recognize this as Amber Heard? 

21 MR. CHEW: Lack of foundation; lack of 

22 personal knowledge; calls for speculation. The 

110 

I witnes is not competent to testify. 

2 A Yes. 
3 Q Okay. Thank you. 

4 MS. BREDEHOFT: Alex, you can take this 

5 one down. Can you give me o. 13, please? 

6 Q Ms. Jacobs , I'm go ing to ask yo u to take a 

7 look at Deposition Exhibit 13. And this was also 

8 May 2 1, 9:25. Have you seen this pichlfe before? 

9 A Not that I can recall. 
IO Q Do you recognize the per on in this 

11 pichlfe? 

12 A Yes. 
13 Q And who is it? 

14 A Amber Heard. 
15 Q Thank you. 

16 MS. BREDEHOFT: All right. We can take 

17 this one down. Alex, if you can go to 13. And 

18 just so we can move it along, I'm going to go 

19 through 13 through 22 pretty quickly, I hope, o 

20 just putting you on notice, Alex. 

21 PLANET DEPOS TECHNICIAN: This is Alex, 

22 the tech, speaking. Thank you for the heads-up, 

111 

I Elaine. I think -- did you want No. 14 next? 

2 MS. BREDEHOFT: Yes, please. Thanks. 

3 Sorry. 

4 PLANET DEPOS TECHNICIAN: Okay. 

5 MS. BREDEHOFT: By the end of this , Alex, 

6 we're just going to think your las t name is "The 

7 Tech." 

8 Q Ms. Jacobs, I'm going to ask you to take a 

9 look at what has been labeled Jacobs Exhibit 14, 

IO also dated May 21. Have you seen this pichtre 

11 before? 

12 A Not that I can recall. 
13 Q All right. Do you recognize the person in 

14 this photo? 

15 A Yes. 
16 Q Okay. And it is? 

17 A Amber Heard. 
18 Q Thank you. 

19 MS. BREDEHOFT: We can take this one down, 

20 Alex, and if you can give me 15. 

21 Q Ms. Jacobs , I'm going to ask yo u to take a 

22 look at Jacob Exhib it 15. Do you recognize this 

I photo? Let me ask that separately. 

2 Have you ever seen this photo before? 

3 A No. 
Q Do you recognize the person in this photo? 

A Yes. 
Q And who is that? 

A Amber Heard. 
Q Thank you. 

112 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 
9 MS . BREDEHOFT: Okay. We can take this 

IO one off, Alex, and we' U go to o. 16, please. 

11 Q Ms. Jacobs , have you ever seen this photo 

12 before? 

13 A Not that I can recall. 
14 Q All right. Do you recognize the person in 

15 this photo? 

16 A Yes. 
17 Q Who is it? 

18 A Amber Heard. 
19 Q Thank you. 

20 MS. BREDEHOFT: Alex, we can take down 16. 

21 Let's go to 17, please. 

22 Q I'm going to ask you to take a look at 
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l what has been marked as Exhibit 17. Have you seen 

2 th is photo before? 

3 A Not that I can recall. 
4 

5 

6 

Q Do you recognize the person in this photo? 

A Yes. 
Q And that is? 

7 A Amber Heard. 
8 Q Thank you. 

9 MS. BREDEHOFT : Let's go to No . 18, 

10 please. 

l I Q Ms . Jacobs, I'm going to ask if you've 

12 seen this photo before? 

13 A No. 
14 Q Do you recognize the person in this photo? 

15 A Yes. 
16 Q And who is it? 

17 A Amber Heard. 
18 Q Thank you. 

19 MS . BREDEHOFT: All right. Let's go to 

20 19, please. 

21 Q Have you seen this photo before, 

22 Ms . Jacobs? 

1 
2 

3 

A No. 
Q Do you recognize the person in this photo? 

A Yes. 
4 Q And who is it? 

5 A Amber Heard 
6 Q Thank you. 

7 MS. BREDEHOFT: Let's go to No . 20. 

8 Q Have you seen this photo before? 

9 A No. 
10 Q Do you recognize the person in this photo? 

11 A It's Amber Heard. 
12 Q Okay. Thank yo u. 

13 MS . BREDEHOFT: Let's go to 2 1. We're 

14 almost done with this set. 

15 MR. CHEW: I hope so. 

16 Q And I'll ask the same question. Have you 

17 seen this photo before? 

18 A Not that I can recall. 
19 Q All right. And do you recognize the 

20 person in the photo? 

21 A Yes. 
22 Q W ho is it? 

114 

1 
2 
3 

A Amber Heard. 
Q Thank yo u. 

MS . BREDEHOFT: And let's go to the last 

4 of this set, 22. 

5 Q Have you seen this photo before? 

6 A Not that I can recall. 
7 Q Do yo u recognize the person in this photo? 

8 A Yes. 
9 Q And who is it? 

10 A Amber Heard. 
11 Q Thank yo u. 

11 5 

12 MS. BREDEHOFT: Okay. Alex, you can take 

13 that. 

14 Q And then were yo u involved in any manner 

15 in the med iation and settlement efforts between 

16 Mr. Depp and Ms . Heard fo llowing Ms . Heard filing 

17 fo r divorce in May 201 6? 

18 A No. 
19 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objec tion; vague and 

20 ambiguous. 

2 1 Q Based on your c lient's [sic] objection, 

22 did yo u understand what I meant by that? 

116 

1 A Yes. 
2 Q All right. I'm go ing to ask yo u to take a 

3 look at Exhibit 24. 

4 Ms . Jacobs , have you ever seen this photo 

5 before? 

6 A No. 
7 Q Do you recognize the people in that photo? 

8 A No. 
9 Q Do you recognize one of them as Mr. Depp? 

10 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection; asked and 

11 answered; argumentative. If she doesn't recognize 

12 the people, she wo uldn't recognize one as Johnny 

13 Depp . 

14 MR. CHEW: Same objection. Asked and 

15 answered. 

16 MS . BREDEHOFT: I'm sorry, I'm waiting for 

17 the answer. 

18 A 1-
19 MR. MARMO RSTEIN: She's asking again 

20 whether you recognize anybody in this photo. 

21 Q No, I'm actually asking if you recognize 

22 one of them as Johnny Depp? 
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l MR. MARMORSTEIN: That presumes she has 

2 any recognition, which she said she doesn't. Go 

3 ahead. 

4 A I've never seen this. 
5 Q I'm sony? 

6 A I've never seen this. 
7 Q But notwithstand ing that you've never seen 

8 it, do you recognize one of the people in that 

9 photo as Johnny Depp? 

10 A It's hard to see. 
11 Q Have you ever seen Mr. Depp snort cocaine? 

12 A No. 

I MR. CHEW: Objection; lack of foundation . 

2 She's never seen it befo re. 

3 A No. 
4 MS. BREDEHOFT: All right. Let's take 

5 that down and let's go to 27. 

6 Alex, are you having trouble with this 

7 one? There we go. Okay. 

8 Q I'm going to ask you to take a look at 

9 Jacobs Exhibit 27. Have you ever seen this 

LO picture before? 

11 A No. 

119 

Q Are you able to say one way or the other 13 MIL,R, 
14 whether Mr. Depp snorted cocaine while you were 

15 representing him? 

12 Q It's a little bit c loser up . Do you 

13 recognize the person in this photo? 

14 MR. CHEW: Objection; lack of foundation . SP, AA 
ICD 

R 

R 

16 A No. 
17 MR. CHEW: Objection. Objection; she's 

18 already answered the question. 

19 MS. BREDEHOFT: Okay. Let's take this one 

20 down and let's go up to 25. And, Ben, I believe 

2 1 you're incorrect, but it doesn't matter, she 

22 answered the question. 

1 Q Do you recognize the people in this photo? 

2 A Yes. 
3 Q Have you ever seen this photo before? 

4 A No. 
5 Q Who are the peop le in this photo? 

6 A Amber Heard and Johnny Depp. 
7 Q All right. ow, during the time that you 

8 represented Johnny Depp, did he smoke? 

9 A Yes. 
10 Q For the entire 30 years or was there 

11 periods where he was on or off or took it up 

12 later? 

1

13 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection; calls for 

14 speculation· lacks fo undation. You can answer. 

l1s A T he entire 30 years. 

118 

16 MS. BREDEHOFT: We can take this one down 

17 and then let's go to the next one, 26. Excuse me. 

18 Q I'm going to a k you to take a look at 

19 Jacobs Exhibit 26. Have you ever seen this photo 

20 before, Ms . Jacobs? 

21 A No. 
22 Q Do you recognize the person in this photo? 

15 She says she's never seen it before. 

16 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Go ahead, Tracey. 

17 A It looks like Johnny. 
18 Q Have you ever seen Mr. Depp in this state 

19 before as depicted in Exhibit 27? 

20 MR. CHEW: Objection; vague. What -- what 

2 1 state is that? 

22 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Join. 

120 

I MS . BREDEHOFT: Passed out on the floor. 

2 MR. CHEW: State of California? 

3 A I don't recall. 
4 Q Were there occas ions during the time you 

5 represented Johnny Depp that he was passed out, 

6 that yo u would see him passed out? 

7 A I don't recall. 
8 MS. BREDEHOFT: All right. Let's go to 

9 28, please. 

10 Q I'm going to ask you to take a look at 

11 Jacobs Exhibit 28. Do you recognize the person in 

12 this photo? 

13 MR. CHEW: Objection; lacks foundation . 

14 A It looks like Johnny, but I don't know. 
15 Q Have you ever seen Mr. Depp in the state 

16 he's depicted in in th is photo before? 

17 MR. CHEW: Objection; asked and answered. 

18 A I don't recall. 
19 Q Do you recall ever seeing this photo 

20 before? 

21 A Never saw it. 
22 Q Okay. 
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1 MS. BREDEHOFT: You can take that down. 

2 We'll go to 29. 

3 Q Ms. Jacobs, do you recognize this bag with 

4 the things in this bag? 

S A No. 

6 MS. BREDEHOFT: We can take down 29. 

7 Let's go to 30. 

8 Q Ms. Jacobs , have you ever seen this 

9 pi cture before? 

10 A No. 

11 Q I'm go ing to ask --

12 MS. BREDEHOFT: Al ex, could you poss ibly 

13 blow up thi s picture a littl e bit more so we can 

14 get the name on the credit card? ls it possible? 

15 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Too blurry. 

16 MS. BREDEHOFT: Okay. Okay. Thank yo u. 

17 All right. We'll take that one down. We' ll go to 

18 number 29. 

121 

19 PLANET DEPOS TECHNICIAN: Did you want 29? 

20 Back one, Elaine? 

2 1 MS. BREDEHOFT: Wait. Oh, no, what is 

22 this one? Is this one 30? 

122 

1 PLANET DEPOS TECHNICIAN: Yes, ma'am. 

2 MS . BREDEHOFT: Then let's go to 31. 

3 Thank you. 

4 PLANET DEPOS TECHNICIAN: Certainly. 

5 Q Ms. Jacobs , I'm go ing to ask you to take a 

6 look at what has been marked as Jacobs Exhibit 3 1. 

7 Have you seen this photo before? 

8 A No. 
9 Q I'm going to direct your attention to this 

IO box that says property of JD with a skull and 

11 crossbones. Have you ever seen Johnny Depp with 

12 this box before? 

13 A No. 
14 MS. BREDEHOFT: All right. We can take 

15 that one down, Alex. Let' s go to 32. 

16 Q I'm going to ask yo u to take a look at 32, 

17 Ms . Jacobs. Have you ever seen this picture 

18 before? 

19 A No. 
20 Q Do you recognize the person in this photo? 

21 A Yes. 
22 Q And who is it? 

1 A Johnny Depp. 
2 MS. BREDEHOFT: All right. We can take 

3 that down. And 33, please. 

4 Q Ms. Jacobs , I'm going to ask you to take a 

5 look at 33. Have you ever seen this picture 

6 befo re? 

7 A No. 
8 Q Do you recognize the person in this? 

9 A Yes. 
10 Q And can yo u tell what Mr. Depp is doing in 

11 this picture? 

12 MR. CHEW: Objection; clearly calls for 

13 speculation; lack of personal knowledge. She's 

14 never seen this photograph before. 

15 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Join. Join in the 

16 objections . 

17 MS . BREDEHOFT: Hold on, I'm going to 

18 withdraw that because I forgot to ask the one 

19 right before it. 

20 Q Who is the person in this picture? 

21 A It looks like Johnny Depp. 

123 

22 MS. BREDEHOFT: Okay. Can you tell -- now 

124 

I I'm going to ask the question, and you guys can --

2 I'll let you have that, just say repeat on your 

3 objections so we don't waste the time --

4 Q Can you tell what Mr. Depp is doing in the 

5 picture? 

6 MR. CHEW: Objection; lack of personal 

7 knowledge; lack of foundation; c learly calls for 

8 speculation fro m a witness who said that she's 

9 never seen this picture before. 

10 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Join. I'm not sure how 

11 she understands what' s go ing on in a picture. 

12 A I'm not sure. 
13 MS. BREDEHOFT: Okay. Take that down and 

14 we'll go to 34. 

15 Q Have you seen this picture before? 

16 A No. 
17 Q I'm pretty sure that ifl ask you if yo u 

18 recognize the person's hand in there, you're going 

19 to say you don' t, wo uld I -- would yo u agree with 

20 me in that? 

21 A Correct. 
22 Q Okay. Do yo u recognize what' s in that 
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l hand? Whatever you recall. 

2 A No. 2 THE WITNESS: Okay. I don't recall. 

3 MS. BREDEHOFT: AU right. That' s fine, 3 Q Okay. What do you reca ll learning about 
4 we' ll take it down. Thank yo u. 4 thi s decis ion? 

5 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Do yo u recognize what's 5 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection; assumes 

6 in that? What is that? 6 facts ; lacks fo undation --

7 THE WITNESS : It looks like a c igar. I 7 MR. CHEW: Obj ection. 

8 have no idea. 8 MR. MARMORSTEIN: -- calls for 

9 Q All right. Now, were you aware that 9 speculation. 

10 Mr. Depp filed a lawsuit in the United Kingdom 10 MR. CHEW: I apologize, David. I j o in in 

11 against The Sun Newspapers, and Dan Wootton, the 11 a ll of those obj ections; lacks foundation; lack of 

12 editor, because they called him a wife beater? 12 personal knowledge; ca lls for hearsay. 

13 A Yes. 13 Q I'll try to make it s impler because I'm 

14 Q Did yo u fo llow any of the press , public ity 14 a lmost done and I'd like -- I know you'd like to 

15 assoc iated with that litigation and the trial? 

16 A Sometimes. 
17 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection; vague and 

18 ambiguous. 

19 Q Okay. Do you know whether any of the 

20 p ictures and video that I just showed you from 

21 Exhibit 12 through 34 were exhibits in that trial? 

22 A No. 

l MR. CHEW: Objection; lack of fo undation; 

2 calls fo r speculation. She wasn't at the trial. 

3 Q I'm going to ask yo u --

126 

4 MS . BREDEHOFT: Alex, if yo u can bring up 

5 No. 9, please. 

6 Q I'm go ing to show you what has been marked 

7 as Depos ition Exhibit 9. This is the decision 

8 issued in the UK court on November 2nd , 2020. Are 

9 you familiar with this dec is ion? 

10 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection; vague and 

11 ambiguous as to familiar. 

12 MR. CHEW: Objection; vague and ambiguous. 

15 move on. 

16 Were you aware that Mr. Depp lost thi s R, .P. ~ury 
17 lawsuit? Confus1on ~AF 

I 18 MR. CHEW: Ob iection to anrumentative. I 

19 A Yes. R, P,r ury 
20 Q Now, are you aware that the judge in tlu.<s.onfusio , AF 

2 1 case found tha t Mr. Depp had engaged in at least 

22- ten acts of domestic viol ence aga inst Amber Heard? 

MR. CHEW: Objection; argumentative; 

2 hearsay; assumes fac ts not in evidence; lack of 

3 fo undation. 

4 A Yes. 

128 

Q And were you aware that Mr. Depp was asked t P, 
. . . Jury Con sion 

6 to leave Fantas tic Beasts 3 two days -- withm two AF 
7 days of this decis ion being reached? 

8 A Yes. 

5 

9 Q And do you believe that this decis ion h~A Lack of f ers 
10 impac ted Mr. Depp's career? Know., SP, AF, Va

0

gue/Am~ig ., P 

1
1 l MK. MAKMUKS r i::1 : UbJectmn; caUs for 

12 speculation; lacks fo undation; ass wnes fac ts --

R, P, Jury 13 A Only what I read. 1) ass umes facts not in evidence. It's also vague 
Confusion , 14 Q Okay. Did you ever read this decis ion? 
AF, Lack 
Pers. Kno 15 A No. 

16 Q When you say, "Only what yo u read," what 

l i and ambiguous. 
l ; MR. CHEW: Same objec tions; lack of 

l fo undation; lack of personal knowledge; 

17 did you read relating to this decision? 1 1 argumentative; calls for speculation; lack of 

1

18 MR. CHEW: Objec tion; assumes fac ts ; lacks 18 personal knowledge; argumentative. 

19 fo undation. You can answer if you recall. 19 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Go ahead, Tracey, if you 

R, P, Jury .L20 A It might have been The Daily Mail. I 20 can sav. 
~~~!u;~~~ · ~J, don't really remember. 21 A Yes. F/A, Lack of Pers. Know., SP, AF, Vague/A1 big ., P 

!22 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Don't guess, Tracey. j22 <._) l'm sorry, l co uldn't hear you, j 
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I 1 Ms. Jacobs . 
129 J 

===========--- 1 

131 

A Some of them. But the deal was made at 
Lacks Found. 2 A Yes. 

Q And in what way? Pers. Know. , 3 
SP, AF, P 

4 A Well, it's a terrible judgment and people 
5 often believe what they read And it certainly is 
6 not helpful in terms of one's career. 
7 Q When you say it' s a temble judgment, 

8 what did you mean by that? 

9 A It was terrible for him, legally and 
1 O publicity wise. 
11 MS. BREDEHOFT: Thank yo u. I have no more 

12 questions. I appreciate your time. 

13 MR. CHEW: David, with your leave, in the 

14 interest of time, I'd like to ask Ms. Jacobs a few 

15 questions and then take a ten-minute break so I 

16 can go through my outline with the object of 

17 culling it and making it sho rter. 

18 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Yeah. Let's do this, 

19 can we take five minutes, yo u can get yo ur 

20 questions together, and then we can jump back in? 

21 MR. CHEW: Certainly. That'd be fine. 

22 MS. BREDEHOFT: Ben, do you want ten then? 

130 

1 MR. CHEW: Let's take ten then, if that' s 

2 all right with David. 

3 MR. MARMORSTEIN: That's fine. 

4 MS. BREDEHOFT: That might be more 

5 efficient. 

6 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Thanks. 

7 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: Okay. So it is 

8 3:03 p .m We go off the record. 

9 (Off the record from 3:03 p.m to 3: 16 

IO p.m.) 

1 l THE VIDEOGRAPHER: It is the beginning of 
12 media number four of the testimony of Tracey 

13 Jacobs. It is 3: 16 p.m We're back on the 

14 record. 
15 Q I think whi le we were off the record, 

16 Ms. Jacobs, your counsel had indicated that that I 

17 should -- I may ask some additional questions on 

18 Christian Dior. Perhaps that wi 11 enable us not 

19to have to suspend -- hold open the deposition, so 

20 let me see if I can ask them 

21 Are you fami liar w ith the terms of 

22 Mr. Depp's contract with Christian Dior? 

2 least eight years ago. 
3 Q Okay. And what was the deal eight years 

4 ago? 

5 A I don't remember what the exact deal was. 
6 I don't remember because Lisa Jacobson, who's no 
7 longer at UT A, primarily made the financial 
8 aspects of the deal, and I just consulted with her 
9 because he was my client. 
JO Q All right. Do you have a reco llection of 

11 what payment arrangement was made? 

12 A I don't know what you mean, what payment? 
13 Q I mean, was there going to be a payment of 

14 a certain amount one year and then an increase 

15 over time? Anything like that? 

16 A Yeah, I just don't remember how it spilled 
17 out. And when he went to CAA, I don't know what 
18 they did. I think they may have extended it, and 
19 I have no access as to how anything worked as I 
20 wasn't involved. 
2 1 Q Do you have a recollection whether there 

22 was any compensation by Dior to Mr. Depp other 

132 

I than straight up salary amounts or set amo unts? 

2 In other words, were there any profits that were 

3 -- any compensation that was tied to profit or 

4 sales or anything of that nature? 

S A I don't know. I can't recall . 

6 Q ls there anything more you can recall 

7 abo ut that contact? I'm talking about Christian 

8 Dior and Mr. Depp. 

9 A No. No. 

10 MS. BREDEHOFT: All right. 1 don't think 

I I there was anything there that could even be 

12 labeled confidential , so -- all right. That's the 

13 end of my questions . Go ahead, Ben. 

14 MR. CHEW: Thank you, Elaine. 

15 EXAMINATION BY COUNSEL FOR THE PLAINTIFF 

16 BY MR. CHEW: 

17 Q Good afternoon, Ms. Jacobs. 1 will try to 

18 keep this very, very quick. l know how busy you 

19 are . And you're exce ll ent at what you do , so I'll 

20 let yo u get back to it. 

JI Have you ever seen Mr. Depp hit a man? 

'2 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; leading; 
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l hearsay. Go ahead . 

2 A No. 
3 Q Have you ever seen him kick a man? 

4 MS. BREDEHOFT : Objection; leading. Go 

5 ahead . 

6 A No. 
7 Q Have you ever seen him throw anything at a 

8 man? 

9 MS. BREDEHOFT : Objection; leading. 

10 A No. 
l l Q Have you ever seen Mr. Depp hit a woman? 

12 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; leading. 

13 A No. 

135 

I Q Do you know whether Ms . Heard was wearing 

2 makeup in any of those picture ? 

3 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; leading. 

4 A No. 
5 Q To the extent there was any d isco lo ration 

6 on her face, do you kno w what the cause to that 

7 d iscoloration was? 

8 A No. 
9 Q Ms. Jacobs , you tes tified, and please 

IC correct me if I'm wrong, that in the las t ten 

l l years of your representation of Mr. Depp, there 

12 was more unprofess ional behavior by Mr. Depp; is 

13 that correc t? 

1~ A Yes. 14 Q Have you ever seen Mr. Depp throw anything 

15 at a woman? 
- .... -~----=-~----------;-.. 
15 Q During that period of time, the last ten 

16 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; leading. 

17 A No. 
18 Q Have you ever seen Mr. Depp kick a woman? 

19 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; leading. 

20 A No. 
2 1 Q In all the times you were in his phys ical 

22 presence, did he ever hit you? 

134 

IE years you represented him, was he ever fired from 

17 a movie? 

1$ MS . BREDEHOFT : Objectio n; leading. Go 

19 ahead . 

2C A No. 
2 1 Q Was he ever fired fro m P irates 5? 

21 A No. 

1 A Never. I 
136 

Q Did anyone from Disney ever te ll you in 

..c::==::::::l?=:-MS. BREDEHOFT: Leadin11:. I? 
L, F, H, Ml,3 Q Other than Amber Heard, do you know of any- 3 

words or sub tance that Mr. Depp -- strike that. 

L 

4 o ther woman who ever accused Mr. Depp ofphy ical 14 
Prior to December 201 8, the month in which 

Ms . Heard pub lished her op-ed in the Wa hington 

5 
6 

abuse? 

MS . BREDEHOFT: Objection; leading; 

5 Po t, had anyone fro m Disney ever to ld yo u in 

6 words o r substance that Mr. Depp was not go ing to 

7 hearsay; fo undation. 7 be in Pirates 6? 

8 A No·-~---------:--,==~8 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; leading; 
,~ V Have you ever seen m person any marks on 9 hearsay; fo undation. Go ahead . 

10 Amber Heard? 10 A I stopped representing him in October of 
11 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; leading. 11 2016, so I have no idea. 
12 A No. 12 Q Fair point. Prio r to October 2016 had 

13 V Uo you recaU that Ms. 8redehott showed 13 anyone from Disney in words o r substance ever to ld 

14 you a series of p ictures that you recogn ized as 14 you that Mr. Depp was not going to be cast in 

15 Amber Heard, do you remember that? 15 Pirates of the Caribbean 6? 

16 A Yes. 16 A No. 
17 Q Do you know who took those pictures? 17 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; leading; 

18 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection. 18 hearsay; fo undation. 

19 A No. 19 Q Were you invo lved in any conversations 

20 Q Do you know when they were taken? 20 about Pirates 6 during o r after the filming of 

2 1 MS . BREDEHOFT: Objection. 2 1 Pirates 5? 

22 A No. 22 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; leading; 
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137 

I hearsay; foundation . Go ahead . 

2 A No. 
3 Q Do you recaU whether there was any 

4 discussion about -- strike that. 

5 lsn't it true that UT A negotiated an 

6 option contract for 22 million for Pirates 6? 

7 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; lead ing; 

8 hearsay; foundation. 

9 A No. 
10 Q You're not aware of that? 

11 A No. 
12 Q Do you have any knowledge of any option 

13 contract being discussed or negotiated relating to 

14 Pirates 6? 

15 A Not during my term with him. I don't know 
16 what happened subsequently. 
17 Q Fair enough. 

18 MR. CHEW: Alex, I'm going to be referring 

19 to the document that we sent you by the numbers 

20 in which we sent you, maybe we can caU them, you 

21 know, Depp 1, Depp 2, etcetera, and I may be 

22 jumping around . Do you have those, Alex? 

138 

I PLANET DEPOS TECHNICIAN: Understood, 

2 Mr. Chew. Yes, I do. I have 1 through 15. 

3 MR. CHEW: Thank you very much. 

4 PLANET DEPOS TECHNICIAN: Certainly. 

5 Q At the time you came to represent 

6 Mr. Depp, he wa already a star on 2 l Jump Street; 

7 correct? 

8 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection. 

9 A Yes. 
10 Q And at the time was he what you would 

11 consider an A-list celebrity? 

12 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; leading. 

13 A No. 
14 Q At what point -- or what do you mean by 
15 A-list celebrity? 

16 MR. MARMORSTEIN: You used that term. 

17 What do you mean what did he mean? 

18 Q Do you know what an A-list celebrity 

19 means? 

20 A No, I don't know what you mean, actually. 
21 Q Do you recaU testifying that -- about 

22 that at one of your prior depositions? 
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1 A I don't recall. 
2 Q Have you ever seen Mr. Depp's movie 

3 contracts? 

4 A Specifically? 
5 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection; vague. 

6 A Specifica lly or one of them? What are you 
7 referring to? 
8 Q Throughout the course of your 

9 representation of Mr. Depp, what was your 

l O involvement in each of the movie contracts? 

11 A The lawyers mostly did that. I made the 

12 deals with the lawyers and then the lawyers went 
13 through the co ntracts. I'm not a lawyer. 
14 Q Through -- through the course of your 

15 representation from beginning to the end over that 

16 approximately 30-year period , was Mr. Depp paid 

17 more with respect to each movie? 

18 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; leading; 

19 hear ay; foundation. Go ahead . 

20 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Do you mean more than 

21 the last movie he did? 

22 MR. CHEW: Yes . 

140 

1 A Are you talking about Pirates, 
2 specifically? 
3 MR. MARMORSTEIN: No, he's talking about 

4 au movies. 

5 Q I'm talking abo ut generaUy, then we can 

6 break it down to Pirates? 

7 A Yes. 
8 MS. BREDEHOFT: Same objections ; hearsay; 

9 leading; foundation. Go ahead. 

10 A It went back and forth. It depended on 
11 the budget of the film. But yes, in general, yes. 
12 Q So in genera~ just to be clear, Mr. Depp 

13 wa paid more as time progressed? 

14 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; leading; 
15 hearsay; foundation . 

16 A Yes . 
17 Q And with respect to the Pirates movies , 

18 from Pirates I through Pirate 5, was his front 

19 end compensation increased or decreased with 

20 respect to each of the five movies? 

21 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; hearsay; 

22 foundation. Go ahead. 
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1 A Increased from 1 until - sorry, from 2 to 
2 3 to 4 and then decreased for 5. 
3 Q All right. 

4 MR. CHEW: Alex, if you would plea e how 

5 the witness Depp Exhibit 3. 

6 Q I'm showing you what purport to be text 

7 messages between you and Mr. Depp. Have you ever 

8 seen this page, Depp Exhib it 3 before, these 

9 particular message ? 

143 

I MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; leading. Go 

2 ahead . 

3 A Yes. 
4 Q And wa Mr. Depp generous towards you? 

5 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; leading; 

6 relevance. Go ahead. 

7 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objectio n; vague. 

8 A Not towards the end, no. 
9 Q But before the end, would he buy you 

10 presents at holiday time? 10 A Again, it's almost five years ago, but 
11 they look like I would've written them 11 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; leading; vague. 

12 Q And particularly, Ms. Jacobs , directing 

13 your attention to one of the texts towards the 

14 bottom middle of the page, did you write Mr. Depp 

15 on or about Tuesday, August 16th, I'm rea lly happy 

16 fo r you that this has settled so things will be 

17 better. I know it's been awful and now you can 

18 move on. We are foc used on work. XOXO . 

19 Did you send that to Mr. Depp? 

20 A It seems that way. 
21 Q And what were yo u referring to? 

22 A Probably his marriage. 

12 Go ahead . 

13 A I think you were there when we talked 
14 about it in one of the other depositions. Yes. 
15 Q So it's fair to say that he wa generous 

16 in tenns of going beyond the contract and giving 

17 you present at Christmastime and things like 

18 that; correct? 

19 MS . BREDEHOFT: Objection; leading. 

20 A Sometimes. 
21 MS . BREDEHOFT: Go ahead. 

22 A Sometimes. 
142 144 

I Q And when you say, it's been awful , now you I Q And some of those gifts were q uite 

2 can move on, 1 that a reference to Mr. Depp's 2 expensive; true? 

3 divorce from Amber Heard? 3 MS . BREDEHOFT: Objection; leading; and 

4 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; leading; 4 ambiguous ; foundatio n. 

5 hearsay; foundation. Go ahead. 5 MR. MARMORST EIN: Join. Also calls for 

6 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Calls for speculation. 6 speculation. You can answer. 

7 If you know, Tracey. 7 A Yes. 
8 A It would seem so. 8 Q Did you ever ask him to get you particular 

9 MR. CHEW: ow, Alex, ifwe could move -- 9 presents? 

10move ahead to Depp Exhibit 4 . 10 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; leading. Go 

I I Q And directing your attention to -- 11 ahead . 

12 MR. MARMORSTEIN: We're sti ll on the same 12 A It was a joke between us. We both gave 
13 exhibit, Ben. 13 each other expensive gifts . 
14 MR. CHEW: I'm sorry. Ifwe coul d move 14 Q Is it fair to say that he would comp ly 

15 ahead to Depp Exhib it 4, p lease, A lex. Thank you. 15 with your request for expensive gifts? 

16 Q And in particular, the first four 16 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection. 

17 exchanges, are the e exchanges between you and 

18 Mr. Depp? 

19 A Yes. 
20 Q And is it fair to say that your 

21 relationship at the time was a very friendly 

22 relationship? 

17 A Sometimes. 
18 MR. CHEW: Let' s move ahead, please, Alex, 

19 to Exhibit 5. 

20 Q Have you ever seen this document before? 1 
21 MS. BREDEHOFT: Ben, before -- Ms. Jacobs) l 
22 before you answer, can you show me what the Ba~ 
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147 

IU , R 
H, IC 2 MR. CHEW: Yes , it's at the bottom, it's 

l understanding, based on the exhibits, etcetera. 

2 So I'll object to it on that basis , also on the 
R, H, 
MIL 
ICD 3 UT A000024. 

4 A I don't reca ll - can you go back up, 
5 please? Because now you're at the bottom and I 

3 basis of hearsay. But go ahead , Ms. Jacobs . 

4 A I think it's pretty self-explanatory. I 
5 had an offer fo r him. 

R, p 6 can't read it. I don't recall this exact 6 Q And do you reca ll itting here today what 

IU , R 
H, ICD 

R, p 

R, p 

R, p 

R, H, 
ICD 

7 document, but I know there were conversations 
8 going on. 
9 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection. I'm going to 

l O object to this document. Not produced in 

l l discovery in this litigation. And it's hearsay. 

12 MR. CHEW: Okav. 

I t3 Q Ms . Jacobs, who is Andrew Thau? 

14 A He's the COO - Michael, is that correct, 
15 of our company? 
16 MR. MARMORSTEIN: If -- you just give the 

17 information you can give, Tracey. obody else can 

18 te tify. 

l~ A l UIUIK nt: ·s lilt! LUU UI U l A. 

20 Q What were you referring to at the top of 

2 1 this document, Depp Exhibit 5, this is good news? 

22 A That we were able to help him out when he 

l was in financial desperation. 

2 Q When you say he lp him out, who is him? 

3 A Johnny Depp. 

4 Q And what particularly was good news? 

5 A That we were able to secure a loan for him 

6 through Bank of America when Ed White couldn't get 

, ........ -··J ............ J -·· ....... . ...... . ... . J ..... . ,., ....... .... ...... . 

8 Q Understood. 

9 MR. CHEW: lfwe co uld move on, please, to 

IO -- Alex, to Exhibit 6 . 

11 Q And right at the top of the page when yo u 

12 aid, I have an offer for you again on the movie 

13 Labyrinth, who are you writing that to? 

14 A Johnny. 

15 Q And what you were refe rring when you to ld 

16 Mr. Depp that you had an offer for him again on 

I 7 the movie Labyrinth? 

18 MS. BREDEHOFT: Hold on a second, wait, 

19 before }'.OU answer. rm going to object to th.is 

20 document as again it's one that has not been 

21 produced in discovery in th.is case. It's got a 

22 UTA number from a different lawsuit, rm 

7 the terms of the offer were? 

8 A Not exactly. 
9 Q Do you have a ballpark of what Mr. Depp 

IO was being offered to do the movie Labyrinth? 

11 MS . BREDEHOFT: Objection; that would be 

12 calls for speculation; hearsay; foundation. 

13 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Join. Don't speculate 

14 or guess, Tracey. If yo u know. 

15 A Yes, I do know, actually. 
16 Q And what was the offer, Ms . Jacobs? 

17 A $8 million. 
18 Q How did Mr. Depp respond to the offer in 

19 or about July 18th, 20 16, on the movie Labyrinth? 

W A There wasn't much of a response. 
U Q Did he end up doing that movie? 

?2 A Yes. 

I 

2 

3 

4 

148 

Q Was he paid the 8 million? 

A No. 
Q Why not? 

A Because they didn't have the funds to pay 
5 him 8 million, as it turned out. 
6 Q But that was not because of anything 

7 Mr. Depp did ; correc t? 

8 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; leading; 

9 hearsay; foundation. 

10 A That's all the money they were able to 
11 raise. You can infer fro m that what you will. 
12 Whether that was on his name or the subject, I 
13 don't know. 
14 MR. CHEW: Okay. If yo u could please turn 

15 ahead, Alex, to Exhib it 7. 

16 MS. BREDEHOFT: I'm going to lodge the RH 
17 same objection; not produced in discovery in this MIL 
18 case; it appears to be a document from some other ICD 
19 case. So I'd object to any uestions on this. 
20 But go ahead. 

2 1 Q You wrote to Mr. Depp in 
22 September 13th, 20 16, that he was to be the lead 
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149 151 

l in the next Fantastic Bea t movie. When did you l MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; leading; 

2 learn that he was go ing to be the lead in 2 hearsay; foundation. Go ahead. 

3 Fantastic Beasts? 3 A There's an interceding step, which is I 

4 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection. 4 took him over for a meeting with then Kevin, Sue, 

5 MR. MARMORSTEJN: Just to c larify, 5 Jahara, Tobi, Emrick and all the bigwigs at 

6 Counsel, I think the date you're looking at refers 6 Wamers after Black Masts to get him -- to get 

----!~i7- to_,.th,.e111t.,e,.x111t b.,e:;;,,:I,.o .. w_ it_ no. t~a~b.o.v,,:;;e.:,iilil.ta~lth~ o,;;.uo~h ~I ---...i.i.1
' them really pumped up about him. And through the 

R, F,H 8 don't know that it's not the same day, just for ll course of conversation, Fantastic Beasts came out 

9 point of clarification. 1, of that. 

10 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; hearsay; p Q ls it fair to say that you succeeded in 

l [ leading; and foundatio n. Go ahead. ~ pumping them up so that he was selected for 

12 MR. CHEW: Thank you, David and E laine. 2 Fantastic Beasts? 

13 Q Did there come a time when you learned 13 A Yes . 

._ ___ t,.11 .. a~t±!:ha~t""'M~ r 111n~ ~nw.,n .wlio!a!ai"..!o~ni~ no 8to"'h~e ~c~a"lll:.tt"~ "11!.w.l~e;!;!a!:.!w;ciiu... n _-+U1 ~ MS. BREDEHOFT : Objection; leading; 

15 Fantastic Beasts l ? l 5 hearsay foundation. 

16 A Yes. 16 A Yes. 

L, F, H, s] 17 '-..!. And when was mart l ~ Q Other than Black Masts, what other films, 
18 A I don't recall. l & if any, had you and Johnny done with Warner 

19 Q How -- how did -- how were you informed l P Brothers? ------~--~alllll!~---------------.. -L, H, F 20 about that? O A I don't recall. He did a movie for New 

21 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; calls for 1 Line, which is a division of Warner Brothers, 

22 hearsav: foundation. 2 many, many years earlier with Marlon Brando. 
150 152 

1 A I don't remember exactly who told me at l Q And was that a succes ? 

2 Warners, but this email I shared with him after I 2 A Somewhat, yes . .----:-----------------------.. 3 hung up with whoever it was to let him know. 3 Q Was it a critical ucce s? L, H, F 

4 Q And I believe yo u referred to the fact 4 A Somewhat. I don't think it was a smashing 

R 

5 that Fantastic Beasts was produced by Warner _Lcritical success like Black Masts._--:::======::i. 
6 Brothers ; is that true? g--Q Was Black Masts a critical success? I H F 

7 A Yes. 7 M:S . tlR:F1 Jl-'.HI II:' I. : UbJect1on; Leactmg; 
8 Q Prior to the filming of R hearsa · aundatin..,..n. ____________ ~ _ 

9 Fantastic Beasts l , what, if any, relationship or 9 A Yes. He got honored at two film l , H, F 

IO -- strike that. 10 festivals, Palm Spring and Santa Barbara, and 
11 What, if any, working relationship had I 1 there was talk of an Academy Award nomination. 
12 Johnny Depp had with Warner Brothers? 12 Q Was it financial success for Warner 

13 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; foundation ; 13 Brothers? 
----i-1"°"4-:-hearsay. 14 MS . BREDEHOFT: Objection; hearsay; 

15 A He did a movie called Black Masts for them 15 leading; foundation. 

16 in 2015. 16 A Not huge, but yes, successful. L, H, F 
- ______ ...,. __ ..., 

17 Q Was that a commercial success? 17 Q What was Johnny's -- what was Mr. Depp's H, F, SP 

18 A Relatively speaking, yes, and it was a 18 upfront compensation for Black Masts, if you 

19 critical success, which was even more important. 19 remember? 
20 Q And after Black Masts , they came back and 20 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; hearsay; 

2 1 chose him for the lead in Fantastic Beasts l ; is 2 1 foundation; calls for speculation. Go ahead. 

22 that correct? 22 A $15 million with a back end that I can't H, F, SP 
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1 recall. I MS . BREDEHOFT: Yeah. Objection; hearsay; 

2 Q What was his compensation upfront for 2 foundation; calls for spec ulation. 

3 Fantastic Beasts l ? 3 A I have no idea. 
4 A Well - 4 Q What involvement, if any, did yo u have in -----:--~;.._....;.;;;;....... _____________ ..... , 
5 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; hearsay; 5 Mr. Depp's filming of City of Lies with Global 

6 foundation- calls for speculation. Go ahead. 6 Road Entertainment? ---~-----__,_ ___ ...._ __________ ...., .. 
H, F, SP 7 A It was a multi-picture deal at the time, 7 A I'm sorry, I didn't hear the first part of 

8 it was pictures 1 through 4. And I believe he got ~I your question. 
9 12-plus very early fantastic bonuses - fantastic 9 Q Have you ever heard of the film City of 

10 bonuses - very early bonuses that were pretty l) Lies? 

11 easy to achieve, which he did. Number two was - l MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; hearsay; 

12 I can't recall, actually. Number three, the one l foundation. Go ahead. 

13 he left fairly recently, he was getting 17 and a J J A Yes. 
14 half, and it escalated from there to 20 and then l i Q What, if any, invo lvement did you have in 

15 22. l ~ that? ----1 ..... __________________ ...., .. 
l6 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Before you ask the next 16 A I didn't. I think I started the deal and 
l 7 question, Ben, to the extent we're getting into 17 he had left for CAA, so I believe they dealt with 
18 the numbers of these deals, [ think ['m going to 18 it. 
l 9 take you up on the offer from both of you to deem l 9 Q Do you -- do you recaU when Mr. Depp 

20 this portion confidential s ince that's available 20 secured that role? 

21 to us. Does counsel agree? 21 A No. 
22 MR. CHEW: That's fine with us. 22 Q Do you know whether Mr. Depp actually got 
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l MS. BREDEHOFT: After -- I'm going to have 

2 to evaluate that one. I wi ll get back to you on 

3 that, David, because these kinds of nwnbers are 

4 different than when we' re talking about with Dior. 

5 We've already had a lot of testimony, Johnny's 

6 testified about these, we've had Whigham testify, 

7 we've had Carino, none of those have been labeled 

8 confidential, so it's different than the nwnbers 

9 for Dior. 

l O MR. MARMORSTEIN: Okay. Would you get 

l l back to me on that? 

12 MS. BREDEHOFT: I will. 

13 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Thank you. 

14 Q What, if any, conversations have you had 

I to film City of Lies? 

2 A I think he did. 
3 Q Did that film ever get released? 

4 A I don't think so. 
5 Q Do you know why it wasn't released? 

6 A No, I wasn't involved. 
7 Q Did you ever speak to anyone about that? 

8 A No. 
9 Q Do you recall testifying that Mr. Depp 

10 received various offer for endorsement deals but 

I l would often not take them? 

12 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; hearsay; 

13 leading; foundation; and assumes facts not in 

l 4 evidence. 
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15 with anyone at Warner Brothers about Ms. Heard's 

16 allegations of domestic abuse by Johnny Depp? 

15 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Can I have the question 

17 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; foundation; 

18 hearsay. Go ahead. 

19 A None. 
20 Q So you don't know one way or the other how 

2 l they found out about them? 

22 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection; vague. 

16 read back, please? 

17 MR. CHEW: I'll ask another question. 

18 Q During the years in which you represented 

19 Mr. Depp, were there ever occasions where he 

20 received offers for endorsement deals but turned 

21 them down? 

22 A Yes. 
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157 159 
I Q Would he ometimes tum them down against I MS. BREDEHOFT: Wait, f'm sorry, Ben, 

2 yo ur advice? 2 before you read , I want to lodge an objection. 

3 MS. BREDEHOFT : Objection; leading; 

4 hear ay. Go ahead . 

3 This one also has a UT A number that's never been 

4 produced to us in this case or in discovery, so 

5 A No. 5 I'm go ing to object to any reference to it. But 

6 Q So you would agree with him when he would 6 I'll just have that as a continuing objection so I 
7 tum them down; is that fair? 7 don't keep interrupting. Go ahead. 

8 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; leading. 8 MR. CHEW: Thank you, Elaine. 

9 A Not necessarily. I don't remember aU of 9 Q And, Ms. Jacobs, you see where yo u wrote 

10 them, but it wasn't worth fighting over. 10 Mr. Depp, we got the $8 million on Labyrinth. Was 
----~--::--::---:-:--:-----:------"'---::-"'--,,----.. 1 

H, F, SP, L 11 Q Is it fair to say that companies were 11 that pending at the time you and Mr. Depp parted 

12 s till interested in Mr. Depp before December of -- 12 ways? 

13 before 2016 in terms of seeking his endorsements? 13 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; leading; 

14 MS . BREDEHOFT: Objection; leading; 14 hearsay; and foundation . 

15 hearsay; foundation. Go ahead. 15 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Vague. 

16 A Before when? 16 A No. This was an initial offer that they 
17 Q Before 2016. 17 then later reduced. And I think CAA must have 
18 MS. BREDEHOFT: Same objections. Go 18 finished it up. It was our deal, but I didn't 
19 ahead. 19 finish it. 
20 A Yes. 20 Q If you would please tum ahead to 

._---~-21--Q,,,_An.,.....d_ o_n'""'th""o_s_e_o_c_ca-s•io_n_s_w""'h_e_n""'Mr- . l!!!!D_e_p_p __ __.12 1 Exhjbit 8. And --

22 turned down opportunities , do you recall the 22 MS. BREDEHOFT: I need to -- Ben, I need 
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l reason why? 

2 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection --

3 A No. 
4 MS . BREDEHOFT: -- hearsay; foundation . 

5 Q I'm sorry, wo uld you please --

6 A No. 
7 Q Okay. At the time that you ceased being 

8 Mr. Depp's agent, did he have any movie offers 

9 pending? 

10 MS . BREDEHOFT: Objection; leading; 

11 hearsay; foundation. 

12 A I don't recaU. 
13 Q Wasn't Labyrinth pending at the time? 

14 A I don't remember the status of the deal at 
15 the time. I'm sorry. 
16 Q Okay. If you could please look back at 

17 Exhibit 7. 

18 MR. CHEW: Alex, if you could post 

19 Exhibit 7 again. 

20 Q And directing yo ur attention back to the 

2 1 ema il where you tell Mr. Depp, we got the 8 

22 million --
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l to put this on the record. Again, this is 

2 so mething that' s got a UT A Bates stamp on it. 

3 ft' s not been produced in this discovery, and I'd 

4 object to any questions that are referenced to it. 

5 May I have a continuing objection on that? That 

6 way I don't --

7 MR. CHEW: Yo u may. 

8 MS. BREDEHOFT: Thank you. 

9 Q Ms. Jacobs, directing your attention to 

10 the third to bottom communication to Mr. Depp, did 

11 you send this text message on or abo ut August 16th 

12 at 6:03 p.m.? 

13 MS . BREDEHOFT: Objection; leading. 

14 MR. MARMORSTEIN: lfyou recall. 

15 A I don't recaU. 
16 Q Who is Brett Ratner? 

17 A He is a producer/financier. Or was, I 
18 should say. 
19 Q And wrote Mr. Depp, quote, he has a new 

20 script he wants to do with you this fall. It's 

2 1 coming to my house torught. What were you 

22 referring to? 
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1 A I can't remember the name of the script. 

2 But I read it, I just don't remember what it' s 

3 called. 
4 Q And then at the bottom you write to 

5 Mr. Depp, one of the be t scripts I have read in 

6 ages . Brett wants to get going ASAP. Incredible 

7 ro le for you. What were you referring to? 

8 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; hearsay. Go 

9 ahead. 

10 A I think I said it in the text. The lead 

11 role. Unfortunate ly - well, the role was a 

161 

12 little too reminiscent of what he was going on in 

13 his personal life. 
14 Q Were they interested in Johnny taking that 

15 ro le? 

16 A Yes . Brett was. It wasn't set up. 
17 Q And did Mr. Depp accept that ro le? 

18 MS . BREDEHOFT: Objection; lead ing; 

19 hearsay; foundation . Go ahead. 

20 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Join. Ass umes facts. 

2 1 You can answer. 

22 A Ultimate ly, no. 

l Q And why not? 

2 A Because as I just said, it was similar to 
3 some of the events in his personal life with the 

4 man - the story itself about the lead. 
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5 MR. CHEW: Alex, if you would p lease move 

6 ahead to Exhibit 9. 

7 MS. BREDEHOFT: And, Ben, may I -- for all 

8 of these UT As that are labeled, may I just have a 

9 blanket objection to them being referred to as not 

IO being produced in discovery? 

l l MR. CHEW: Yo u certainly may, Elaine, but 

12 they were all produced to your office prior to 

13 this deposition. So you should , again, check with 

14 them, because you got that and you got the 

15 depos ition transcripts , so --

16 MS. BREDEHOFT: And I understand you've 

17 said that, I haven't seen them, you might be right 

18 I might be wrong, but if f'm right then I want to 

19 preserve the objections. So I'm -- but f'm trying 

20 to not to make this longer, l just want to have a 

21 blanket objection and we can deal with it later. 

22 MR. CHEW: Okay. Are we on -- yes , we're 
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I on Exhibit 9. 

2 Q Have you ever seen this docwnent before, 

3 Ms . Jacobs? 

4 A Yes. 
5 Q And what is it? 

6 A It's an exchange between me and Johnny 

7 regarding a project that I made a deal for him at 

8 Universal ca lled The Invis ible Man. 
9 Q And tell us about that. What kind of deal 

10 did you make invo lving The Invisible Man? 

11 MS. BREDEHOFT : Objection; hearsay; 

12 fo undation. Go ahead. 

13 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Also vague. Go ahead, 

l 4 if you know. 

15 A I don't remember exactly, but it was lower 

16 than his usual fee. 
l 7 Q Do you recall what the fee was? 

18 A I don't remember exactly. I don't want to 

19 give misinformation. 
20 Q Well, let's go to the top of the document, 

2 1 Exhibit 9. You asked Mr. Depp what happened with 

22 Tim Burton? First of all, for the record , who is 
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l Tim Burton? 

2 A Tim Burton is a filmmaker Johnny has made 

3 five films with. 
4 Q And what were those films ? 

5 A Edward Scissorhands, Ed Wood, Dark 

6 Shadows, Corpse Bride, and there's one other one, 

7 I'm sorry, I can't recall. 
8 Q And each of those was a critically 

9 acclaimed movie; correct? 

10 A No -
l l MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; leading 

12 hearsay; foundation. 

13 A Not all of them. 
14 Q Edward Scissorhands was ; correct? 

15 A Yes. 
16 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; leading. 

17 A Ed Wood was a critica l success but a 
18 commercial failure. Dark Shadows was both a 
19 commercial fa ilure and a critical failure . Corpse 
20 Bride was successful. And there's one other, I 
21 just can't recall. 
22 Q And in addition to being a collaborator 
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165 
1 with Mr. Depp, Mr. Burton and Mr. Depp are close 1 

2 personally; correct? 2 

3 MS . BREDEHOFT: Objection -- 3 

Q -- text on the bottom. 

MR. CHEW: Now you can see that. 

MR. MARMORSTEIN: There it is. 

4 A Correct. 4 MS . BREDEHOFT: Objection; hearsay; 

5 MS. BREDEHOFT: -- leading; hearsay; 5 foundation. 

167 

6 foundation. 6 MR. MARMORSTEIN: What's your question? 

7 A Yes. I mean, I shouldn't speak to today. 
8 They were. 
9 Q During the course of your representation 

10 of Mr. Depp, Mr. Depp had a close personal and 

l l professional relationship with Mr. Burton; 

7 Q They have three they are focused on, Bride 

8 of Frankenstein, Van Helsing, and Invisible Man? 

9 A I was referring to that was Universal's 
10 focus at the time. 
l l MR. CHEW: Okay. And uwe could , Alex, 

12 move ahead to Exhibit 10? 12 correct? 

13 A Yes. 13 MS. BREDEHOFT: And same blanket objection 

14 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; lead ing; 14 for all these UT As, right, Ben, so I don't have to 

15 hearsay; foundation. Go ahead. l 5 keep repeating? 

16 MR. CHEW: And same response. 16 Q Mr. Depp responds to your query about what 

17 happened with Tim Burton and he says that he would 

18 send the script to him. Do you know whether 

17 MS . BREDEHOFT: Right. But you're giving 

18 me the blanket notwithstanding; correct? 

19 Mr. Depp ultimately did that? l 9 MR. CHEW: Right. 

20 MS . BREDEHOFT: Objection; calls for 20 MS . BREDEHOFT: Thank you. 

21 hearsay; foundation . 21 Q Have you ever seen this document before? 

22 A No. 22 A Yes. 
166 168 

1 Q You don't know one way or the other? l Q And explain what it is, please. 

2 A Correct. 2 A It's him saying to me, he knows he has a 
3 Q He then writes the film that I know we can 3 deal on Invisible Man, which we spent months 
4 begin to prepare together is Phantom of the Opera. 

5 He will do this, I know it. Do you know what he' s 

6 referring to there? 

7 A Yes. 

8 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; hearsay; 

9 foundation. Go ahead. 

IO A Universal has a program called the 

11 Monsters Universe, or they did at the time. Tom 

4 making. And that also came out of a meeting with 
5 Donna Langley, who's the chairman of Universal. 
6 And he's ignoring that and now focused on the 
7 other one, which he mentioned in the previous 
8 texts. And he has no deal on that. 
9 Q When you say the other one, are you 

10 referring to Phantom of the Opera? 

11 A Yes. 
12 Cruise did The Mummy, Invisible Man was supposed 12 Q Did you try to steer him more towards 

13 to be second, and Phantom of the Opera is also 13 Invisible Man? 

14 another one. But Johnny didn't have a deal on 14 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; leading; 

15 Phantom of the Opera and it had never been 15 hearsay. Go ahead . 

16 discussed. This was his idea. 16 A Yes and no. Yes in that that was what his 
17 Q And you respond to him in Exhibit 9, you 17 deal was on, and they weren't focused on Bride of 
18 refer to Bride of Frankenstein. What did that 18 Frankenstein. The studio was not focused on it, 
19 refer to? 19 and l tried to explain that to him. 
20 A Where? l don't see that, l'm sorry. 20 Q Did Mr. Depp follow your direction? 

21 Q It' s the second to last -- 21 A No. 
22 MR. MARMORSTEIN: We can't see that, Ben. 22 MR. CHEW: Okay. Alex, uyou could move 
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169 171 

l ahead to Exhibit I l. I 
---::-.... 

MR. CHEW: Let's move ahead, please, to MIL 

2 MS . BREDEHOFT : Same blanket objection. 

3 Q In the middle -- have you ever seen this 

4 document before, Ms . Jacobs? 

5 A Yeah. Yes. 

MIL 6 Q And directing your attention to the text 

7 in the middle of the page, you say, Wamers had a 

8 great test of Fantastic Beasts last night, and Sue 

9 Krill said you were terrific . XX. 

10 Who is Sue Krill? 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

Exhibit 12. 

Q Okay. And directing your attention, 

Ms . Jacobs , to -- well, first of all, have you 

ever seen this document before? 

MS. BREDEHOFT: Same blanket objections, 

please. 

A Yes. 
9 Q And what is it? 

10 A It's a document relating to an offer I had 
11 A Sue Kroll actually, it was a misspelling. 
12 K-R-0-1.rL. She was then the president of 

1.!_on Murder on the Orient Express at Fox . 
........:====::==; ~ Q And just for the record, the first text 

t=.====:::1;::1:,;,ma:.:: rketin!! and distribution at Warner Brothers. _ 13 you sent to Mr. Depp was on September 9, 2016; is 
14 Q And is that, in fact, what she told you? 14 that correct? H, L, MIL 

15 A Correct. Yes. 15 A I don't recall . ... ----...-"""' 16 Q And when you say a great test of Fantastic 16 Q Well, you see in the first text there, you 

17 Beasts, to what were you referring? 17 say, I have an offer for you on Fox movie in -------- -----------' 18 A Studios show - have tests of their films 18 January. What was that referring to? H, MIL 

19 on a regular basis to see what the audiences like 19 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; hearsay; 

20 and don't like in order to know whether to make 20 foundation. Go ahead . 

21 changes, do reshoots, etcetera. And they tested 21 A It was referring to the offer I had 
22 the first movie, and it's exactly what I said, I 22 Q What offer was that? 

170 172 

1 told him what she said l MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; hearsay; ... ___ _.,. .... _ ------------
2 Q And the response came back from Jacques 2 foundation. Go ahead . H, F, MIL 

3 Hughes saying, still like the character? Do you 3 A I'm sorry, am I repeating myself? The 
4 see that? 4 offer for the Murder on the Orient Express. 
5 A Yes . 5 Q You say, money not great, but need to 

.._ ___ -t;,o!""---i1m:;:,v1..:,-. 'Rfl"~K r.~utl'o!fi~Or,,:-r~T~.- ul'"'.'Hb'l!!1'J""'~uu,,"",,"!;11.ff" 'arr;n~rny"",--....., 6 discuss . What did you mean by that? 
-----.,;7_ fi_o ... un_d_a_ti.;...on_. _______________ llllt' 7 A The money was not a great offer, and I 

MIL 8 Q Is Jacques Hughes Johnny Depp? 8 wanted to negotiate and get it up. 
9 A Yes. 9 Q What was the offer? .... --------10 Q You respond loves. She wants to talk to 10 A Initially-H, F, MIL 

! I you directly. She said she texted and called. I 11 MS . BREDEHOFT: Objection; foundation. Go 

12 told you you'd been traveling. Wamers very 12 ahead. Go ahead, I'm sorry. 

13 happy. 13 A It states it later in the text where I 
14 What did you mean when you told Mr. Depp 14 said they offered you 3- for four weeks. 
I<; that Wamers Brothers was verv baoov? 15 Q Well, explain that to the people who have 

16 MS. BREDEHO FT: Objection; hearsay; 16 to read this transcript. 

-----.-1_7_fi_o .... un_d_a_ti_on_._...;cG..;.o_a_h..;..ea-'d __ . ------------1 17 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; hearsay; 
H, F, MIL 18 A That they were very happy with the movie 18 foundation. Go ahead. 

19 and the test results. 19 A What is it that you want me to explain? 
1-----l'!!"!!"-- --------~---20 Q And when you say the movie, you're talking 20 Q What was the offer? L, MIL 

2 1 about Fantastic Beasts l? 

22 A Yes. 
2 1 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; foundation. 

n_ A 3 million for four weeks. 
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175 

H, F, L, NF ,l 
MIL 2 

Q Was that the final offer or the one that 

you negotiated up? 

I foundation; calls for speculation. 

2 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Hold on. Objection; 

3 
4 

A No, that was the opening offer. 
Q What was the -- did there come a time when 

3 ca lls for speculation; vague and ambiguous ; 

4 assumes facts. 

5 you sweetened the deal for your c lient? 5 A No. 
6 A Yes. 6 MR. CHEW: ow, Alex if you could move 

7 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objec tion; hearsay; 7 ahead to Exhibit 13. 

8 leading; and fo undation. Go ahead. 8 MS. BREDEHOFT: Same blanket objection, 

9 Q What was the final deal for Murder on the 9 please. 

10 Orient Express? 10 Q Have you ever seen, Ms. Jacobs , this 

l l MS. BREDEHOFT: Objectio n; hearsay; 11 doc ument before? 

12 foundation. Go ahead. 12 A Years ago. It looks familiar, yes. 
13 A $5 million for four consecutive weeks, 13 Q And directing your attention to the text 

14 plus a great back end which he has received 14 in the middle of the page, is this where you're 

15 significant money on subsequently. 15 describing to Mr. Depp the final terms of the 
----?'!'I!---.;;,,,,..-..,,.--.,-...;..--,-..,;.._..,.;._-: ____ ..... 

16 Q lJo you have any ,aea s1ttmg here today 16 dea l, I got you 5 million for four weeks? 

17 what the quantum of the back end that he's 17 MS . BREDEHOFT: Objection; hearsay. 

18 received on Murder on the Orient Express? 18 A Yes. 
19 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection -- 19 Q And you tell him, and ten percent of gross 

20 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection. 20 with a tme cash break with a one -- a 10 percent 

21 MS. BREDEHOFT: -- hear ay; fo undation; 21 fee. Would you exp lain what that means? 

22 calls for speculation. Go ahead. 22 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; hearsay; 

l Q She -- you get ten percent of what 

2 Mr. Depp gets on the front end and the back end; 

3 correct? 

4 A Yes. 
5 Q So I'm not asking you to speculate. What 

6 --

174 

7 A I have no idea w hat the back end ended up 
8 to because we don't get corroboration from his 
9 current business managers. 
10 Q But you testified that it wa a good deal; 

l l correct? 

12 A Yes, because we modeUed it out and 
13 figured out in certain parameters of success how 
14 much he would receive, and he's received some 
15 significant money so far. The movie grossed 
16 $300 million. 
17 Q Do you have any ballpark approximation of 

18 what Mr. Depp has received on the back end of 

19 Murder on the Orient Express? 

20 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection. 

21 A No. 
22 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; hearsay; 

176 

l foundation. Go ahead . 

2 A I don't remember, to be honest. Usually 
3 it would be with a 10 pe rcent cas h break free. I 
4 can't explain it. 
5 MR. MARMORSTEIN: lfyou recall, Tracey. 

6 A I don't recall. 
7 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Okay. 

8 Q And do you see where you told Mr. Depp 

9 that you were thrilled? 

10 A Yes. 
l l Q And why were you thrilled? 

12 A Because it was a long ways up from 
13 $3 million, and it was four consecutive weeks 
14 which is one-third the - you know, of the fuU 
15 schedule. 
16 MR. CHEW: Right. And , Alex, if you would 

17 please move ahead to Exhibit 14. 

18 MS . BREDEHOFT: Same blanket objection, 

19 please. 

20 Q Have you ever seen this document before? 

2 1 A Yes. 
22 Q What is it? 
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1 A It's a - it's - it refers to a painting 
2 by Kurt Cobain's daughter, Frances Cobain. 
3 Q And was that painting in your house? 

4 A No, I think it was at the office. 
5 Q When you say the office, were yo u 

6 referring to your office? 

7 A Yeah, at the office, that's what I'm 
8 referring to. The office in Beverly Hills. 
9 Q Why were you sending a picture of the 

10 painting to Mr. Depp? 

177 

11 A Because I had spoken to him about it and 
12 he wanted it. 
13 Q Did you buy it for Mr. Depp? 

14 A No, it was a gift from Frances Cobain. 
15 Q To who? 

16 A Johnny. 
17 Q Then if yo u look down in the next text, 

18 you say, Elton called me to say your vo ice in 

19 Gnomes is fantastic. What are you referring to 

20 there? 

21 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection. 

22 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection; document 

178 

179 

I Pirates 5 were you referring to? 

2 MS. BREDEHOFT : Objection; hearsay; 

3 foundation. Go ahead. 

4 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Calls for speculation. 

5 You can answer if you know. 

6 A That someone there told me that they had 

7 released the teaser and they were getting great 

8 response from people. [ don't know who the people 

9 were, but they got positive feedback. 

10 Q And Pirates 5 was a financial success; 

11 correct? 

12 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; hearsay; 

13 foundation; and leading. Go ahead. 

14 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Ca lls for speculation. 

15 A Yes and no. Yes, in that it grossed over 

16 $800 million, but given that three of the others 

17 had grossed over a billion dollars, it was 

18 considered a success but not a huge success. 

19 Q Do you recall sitting here today what each 

20 of the five Pirates of the Caribbean movies 

21 grossed? 

22 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; hearsay; 

180 

l speaks for itself. Go ahead, Tracey. l foundation . Go ahead. 

2 A Elton John was the producer of a movie at 2 A No, but you can certainly look it up on 
3 Paramount - yeah, Paramount called Gnomeo and ~ e te.rne and Goo!!le eac one o the.m.. ___ -! __ 

4 Juliet, and Johnny voiced one of the lead 4 Q What was Mr. Depp's upfront compensation 

5 characters. 5 for Pirates 5? 

6 Q And when did that project take place? 6 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; hearsay; 

7 
8 

A I don't recall. 
Q And then moving down, the next text 

9 message, you tell Johnny that Tim Burton said 

10 really great things about you on Buffington Post. 

11 To what were you referring? 

12 MS . BREDEHOFT: Objection; hearsay; 

13 foundation. 

14 A I don't recall. 
15 Q And moving down to the bottom of 

16 Exhibit 14. You write Mr. Depp, great teaser 

17 trailer for PS. Looks great. XXX. 
18 What were you referring to there? 

19 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; hearsay; 

20 foundation . Go ahead. 

21 A Pirates 5. 

7 foundation. Go ahead. 

8 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection; calls for 

9 speculation. 

10 A Am I supposed to give an answer? 
11 Q If you know. 

12 MR. MARMORSTEIN: If you know. 

13 A Yeah, he got paid 25 million with a back 
14end. 
15 Q And what were the terms of the back end, 

16 if you recall? 

17 A I don't recall. 
18 MR. CHEW: Alex, ifwe could turn ahead to 

19 Exhibit 15, please? 

20 MS. BREDEHOFT: Same blanket objection for 

21 UTA. 

H, F, 
SP 

22 Q And what specifically relating to I 22 Q Have you ever seen this document, t-,D, MIL I 
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!RI ~ 

NP, MIL LL_ Exhibit LS? 1 A Yes. L, 'H', F, NF ' MIL I -=-~-~-~~~-~~----..... ----------------------:--H, F, NP, 2 A It looks familiar. I don't recall it 2 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; leading; 
MIL 3 exactly. 3 hearsay; and foundation. 

4 Q Were the e -- 4 A Yes. 

5 A Actually, I do recall it. 5 Q Who is Baz Luhrrnann? 
6 Q All right. Tell us what it is. 6 A Baz is a director who directed Moulin 

7 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; hearsay; 7 Rouge!, Romeo & J':1 1iet. He's Australian. He was 

8 foundation. Go ahead. 8 directing a mo vie, which he is in post production 

H, F, NP, 9 A It's a text giving him the notification ~ no w as it turns out with Tom Hanks and a young 

MIL 10 that I had just received When we first made the .o actor about Co lonel Tom Parker and Elvis Presley, 

11 deal for Fantastic Beasts it was only made for ll and I'd been talking to the studio about Johnny 

12 four movies, and Wamers was so happy that they 12 for Colonel Tom. 

____ .1. extended it and picked it up for a fifth moVJ,:.:·:.e·==:r1'" 3 Q And you say here, trying to set up a 

L, F, SP, N :i 4 Q When did they make the decision to go 14 meeting for you -- strike that. 
Mil 15 ahead with the fifth movie? 15 Trying to set up a meeting for the two of 

16 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection; calls for 16 you early next yet --

17 speculation. 17 A Next week. It was a typo . 
18 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection. 18 Q Next week. Waiting for script. Did that 

L, F, SP, N Pl9 A I don't know exactly, but I told him as 19 meeting ever take place? 
MIL 20 soon as I knew. 20 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; hearsay; 

21 Q That's a good objection. When did you 21 foundation. Go ahead. 

22 find out that Warners Brothers had made the 22 A r don't recall. 

182 184 

I dec is ion to go ahead with the fifth movie? I MR. CHEW: All right. Well, why don't we 

2 MS. BREDEHOFT: UbJect1on. 2 take a break for ten minute and I will go through 
-----i,---:--=---:--'.:'."'"""--:--~-:--":"':"':'"!'" _____ ....,. 
I L. F SP NP Ml 3 A Thursday, October 13th, 2016. 3 my no tes. 
-----.4~-lll!M!"'!'!!!S•. '!!!'B'!!!'RE"!!!"!!!D"!!!E!'!'H!"!!O!!"!F!!!'!T!!":111![!!!"'m- s·orry- ,111!!I•d!'!"id"'"n"!"'t.,h-e·ar ___ 4 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Great. While you do, 

5 the first part of that answer. 

6 A Thursday, October 13th, 2016. I always 

7 let him kno w in realtime. 

8 Q What, if anything, did -- who at Warner 

9 Brothers informed you of that? 

10 A l can't reca ll. 

I I Q What, if anything, did that person say 
12 with respect to your client, Johnny Depp, being in 

13 the fifth Fantastic Beasts movie? 

14 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; hearsay; 
15 fo undation. 

5 let me just put this on the record . With respect 

6 to your line of questio ns, Ben, specific to 

7 questions and answers about movie deals , amounts, 
8 I'm going to again restate for the record that we 

9 would req uest Ms . Jacobs' testimony be deemed 

IO confidential Ben, I think I'm correct in 

11 confirming you're okay with deeming this testimony 
12 confidential as to those matters ; is that right? 

13 MR. CHEW: David, we're fine with that. 

14 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Okay. And, Elaine, can 
15 you confirm that or let us know when yo u will 

16 A It' s official, we're making fi ve mo vies 16 confirm that or not? 
17 and we're going to be making a deal for Johnny fo r 17 MS. BREDEHOFT: l can't confirm it today, 

____ _.,..:al :;:.8~~thi:.:;:'":.e;;;fii=fth,.:;m:.:;:o::.•vwii;!!a" -------------"'l'I I 8 David, but I will let you know. 
L, H, F, NP, 19 Q So it was your understanding that as of 19 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Okay. Irrespective of 
MIL 20 that time Wamers Brothers' intention was to cast 20 whether other peop le have, you know, referenced 

21 Mr. Depp in all of the Fantastic Beasts movies, 1 21 the subject matters , I think you said earlier, you 
22 through 5; correct? 22 know, for purpo es of Ms . Jacobs's testimony on 
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185 

I this matter, we'd like that confidential, for the 

2 record. 

3 MR. CHEW: Sure. I mean, trial of course 

4 is a different -- is a different thing. l think 

5 things don't app ly at trial, but certainly for 

6 present purposes we're fine with that. 

7 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Great. And if yo u have 

8 the testimony elsewhere, then that's the tes timony 

9 yo u can use elsewhere, so I'm not sure we need to, 

10 yo u know, quibble over this. But I'll let you 

11 look at it, Elaine, and get back to us. 

12 MS. BREDEHOFT: Will do . Thank yo u. 

13 MR. CHEW: Why don't we come back -- let' s 

14 make it an even 15 minutes and co me back at I :30. 
15 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Sure. 

16 MR. CHEW: I think that'll make things go 

17 faster, actually. 

18 THE WITNESS : Do you have any idea how 

19 much longer this will be, approximately? 

20 MR. CHEW: I'm -- if I'm not done, I'm 

21 c lose to done, and then you'll have to ask 

22 Ms. Bredehoft. 

187 

I hearing; foundation; and already asked and 

2 answered . 

3 A No. 
4 Q Have you ever seen Mr. Depp throw anything 

5 at Ms. Heard? 

6 MS. BREDEHOFT: Same objec tions; leading; 

7 hearsay; foundatio n; already asked and answered. 

8 A No again. 
9 Q Have you ever seen Mr. Depp kick 

10 Ms . Heard? 

11 MS . BREDEHOFT: Same objec tions; hearsay; 

12 leading; foundation; asked and answered . 

13 A No again. 
14 Q Actually, there's a fourth question. Have 

15 yo u ever seen or witnessed Mr. Depp do anything 

16 vio lent to Ms . Heard? 

17 MS . BREDEHOFT: Aga in, leading; hearsay; 

18 foundation; and asked and answered . 

19 A Nope. 
20 Q Thank you very much. I appreciate yo ur 

2 1 time, Ms. Jacobs. 

22 A You're welcome. 
186 188 

I 

2 

MS. BREDEHOFT: Right. I EXAMINATION BY COUNSEL FOR THE DEFENDANT 

MR. MARMORSTEIN: Elaine, do you have more 2 BY MS. BREDEHOFT: 

3 -- do you have more cross? 

4 MS. BREDEHOFT: I do. It'll be definitely 

5 less than a half hour. 

6 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Okay. So let' s take 15 

7 and we' ll come back. 

8 MS. BREDEHOFT: Okay. 

9 

10 

MR. CHEW: Sounds good . Thank you. 

THE VIDEOGRAPHER: So it is 4:15 p.m. We 

11 go off the record . 

12 (Off the record from 4:15 p.m. to 4:31 

13 p.m.) 

14 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: It is the beginning of 

15 media number five in the testimony of Tracey 

16 Jacobs . It is 4:31 p .m. We're back on the 

17 record. 

3 Q Ms. Jacobs, would it be fair to say that 

4 you do not know one way or the other whether 

5 Mr. Depp has caused any injury to any person, 

6 including Amber Heard? 

7 MR. CHEW: Objection; argumentative; asked 

8 and answered. 

9 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Join. 

10 A Yes. 

11 MR. CHEW: Badgering. 

12 Q Would it be fair to say that you cannot 

13 say one way or the other whether Mr. Depp has hit, 

14 unched, kicked, headbutted, or choked Amber 

15 Heard? 

16 MR. CHEW: Objection; argumentative; asked 

17 and answered. 

18 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Join. 

Argume 

18 Q Thank yo u, Ms . Jacobs , for your time. I 
l19 A Ye s. Arm 1mP.,+;:itivP. 

19 have three questions. They' re probab ly redundant, 

20 but just for belts and suspenders . Have you ever 

21 seen Mr. Depp hit Ms. Heard? 

22 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; leading; 

LU I..! Ana IS ff ratr mar you -- IS ff correcr 

2 1 to say -- strike that. Let me rephrase it. 

22 Can you say one way or the other whether 

f 
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l Mr. Depp has ever hit, punched, kicked, 

2 headbutted , or choked anyone else? 

3 MR. CHEW: Asked and answered. 

4 A Can I say that? 
5 Q Yes. One way or the other, do you know? 

6 A No. 
7 Q Okay. Now, Mr. -- Mr. Chew took you 

I 8S" l 1 
b 
3 
4 

5 

6 

7 

I :11 

document subpoena? 
MR M RMOR ST FTN· In thi r,~"P.? 

A No. 
MR. MARMORSTEIN: You're talking about 

this subpoena? 

MS. BREDEHOFT: Yes . 

A I turned it all over to the attorneys. ICD 
8 through a number of documents, and they had the 

R ICD 9 UT A labels on the bottom, which is the com.Rany 

8 

9 

Q But do yo u know whether there were any 

documents that were provided to counsel for 

R 
ICD 

IO that you work for; right? 

11 A Yes. 
12 Q And we already looked at our Exhibit 2, 

13 which was the document subpoena asking for 

14 documents, and we looked at Exhtbit 3, which was 

15 your declaration ofno records. Do you have any 

16 explanation for why the documents that Mr. Chew 

l 7 was showing you were never produced to us in 

l 8 response to the deposition -- the document 

19 subpoena? 

20 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection. I'm going to 

2 1 -- I'm going to instruct the witness not to answer 

22 because she's testified very clearly in this 

190 

I deposition that the subpoena and the response and 

2 the declaration was the result of work done by 

3 counsel. Her knowledge would be based on her 

4 discuss ions with counsel. Whatever other 

5 documents were produced in other cases by UT A she 

6 may not have been privy too. They were probably 

7 abso lutely responsive to different subpoenas with 

8 different categories and questions , so I think 

9 that question, as it' s framed , Counsel, asks for 

1 O her to divulge attorney-client information. If 

11 you want to rephrase it so it doesn't, I'm happy 

12 to have her an wer that. --------13 Q Are you following your counsel's 

14 instructions not to answer my uestion? 

15 A Yes. 
16 Q Okay. Is it correct to say that you did 

10 Ms. Heard in response to M . Beard's subpoena 

11 document? 

112 A No, I don't know. 
13 MR. MARMOKSTl::1 : Just to c lanfy, the 

14 witness is saying she turned the matter over to 

15 her attorneys, not that she turned documents over 

16 to her attorneys, with respect to this subpoena, 

17 just so that's c lear o n the record . I don't want 

18 there to be a confu ing record . 

19 A Correct. 
20 MS. BREDEHOFT: And I' m trying to just 

2 1 make this c lean so we can move o n, and yo u can 

22 understand why I'm asking it, David . 

192 

1 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Yeah, I do, I just want 

2 it to be clear. 

3 Q Are you aware of any documents that were 

4 turned over in this litigation to Ms . Heard and 

5 her co unsel in response to Ms . Heard' s document 

6 subpoena to yo u? 

7 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Counsel, that pres wnes 

8 that there are respons ive documents , and I don't 

9 want yo u to co nfuse the record th is way. 

10 MS. BREDEHOFT: You can have whatever 

11 objec tions you want. I'm as king if she's aware of 

12 any. That's all I' m asking. 

13 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Of any documents 

14 res po nsive? 

15 MS. BREDEHOFT: Being turned over to 

16 Ms. Heard in response to the doc ument subpoena 

17 not provide any documents in response to 17 req uest. That's a fa ir question. 

18 Ms. Beard's document subpoena? 18 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Well, are yo u asking her 

19 A I'll say it agai~ I turned everything 19 whether there are respons ive documents --
__ -!,,. .. O over to counsel. 20 MS . BREDEHOFT: lf she's not aware of any, 

R 121 Q Do you know of any documents that were 21 say she's not aware. If she's aware of so me and 

22 turned over to Ms. Heard by yo u in response to the 22 says yes, I know I gave yo u this and this , she can 
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193 

say that, but it's a fai r question. 

2 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Well , it's a fair 

3 question if you estab lish that there are 

4 responsive documents. You're avoiding that 

5 question and answer, so that the reco rd is going 

6 to be unclear. So let's clear the record . 

7 MS. BREDEHOFT: You know, if you want me 

8 to spend another hour and go through every one of 

9 the Depp exhibits and show how -- and then take it 

10 over to the document subpoena and match it up , I 
11 can do that, but I don't need to do that. I'm 

12just asking the question here and I' ll dea l with 

13 the rest of that in court. 

MR. MARMORSTElN: Not yet. 

2 Q I'm waiting for the document. 

3 A Sorry. 
4 Q And just so we're clear, I'm going to 

5 direct your attention to --

6 MS. BREDEHOFT: Ifl can have contro~ 

7 Alex. Thank you. Alex, is there a reason why I 
8 can't highlight on this one? I got it. Never 

9 mind. 

195 

10 Q So this is a declaration ofno records . 
===== 

11 I, Tracey Jacobs, declare as follows , and the 

12 first one says I'm a qualified witness with 

13 authority to certify records on my own behalf 

R, 
Jury 

Co fusion 

14 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Well , you don't need to 14 responding to the Superior Court of California 

15 threaten a longer deposition. We're tryi ng to 

16clear the record here. 

17 MS. BREDEHOFT: You're asking me to match 

18 that up, and that woul d take some time for me to 

19 go through each one of those in her deposition. 

20 There's no need for it. All I'm doing is setting 

21 the record straight that Ms. Jacobs is not aware 

22 of any document that has been provided to 

15 subpoena for production of business records in 

16 action pending outside of California and subpoena 

17 duces tecum to person under foreign subpoena in 

18 the matter of John C. Depp, II versus Amber Laura 

19 Heard, Case No. 2019-2911. A copy of the subpoena 

20 is attached to this declaration. After conducting 

21 a good faith diligent search of all records in my 

22 custody, possession, or contro~ no records 

196 194 J 

4 

Ms. Heard in response to the document subpoena in ]:1 
2 this case. 

3 A No, that's not what I said. 
0 That's why I'm askin2:. 

. . . . . - -
1t:4ut:su;;u Ul Ll~ SUU(JUt:ll<i Wt:l t: LUWIU . 

Accordingly, I am unable to provide the requested 

documents or communications . 

s igned? 

ls that what you 

R, 
Jury 

Conf Jsion 

5 A What I said was when I got the subpoena, 
6 and I don't even remember getting it, and I got it 
7 and I signed it, and it was turned over to my 
8 attorneys. Period 
9 Q So my question, and I'm just trying to 

10 make sure my record is clear, are you aware of any 

11 document that was produced to Ms. Heard or 

12 Ms . Heard's counsel in response to Ms . Heard's 

13 document subpoena that's listed as Jacobs 

14 Exhibit 2? 
1 i;; 

16 

A Mv answer is T rlon't know. 

MR. MARMORSTEIN: Ho ld on. Ho ld on. I'm 

17 going to object that it lacks foundation. 

18 MS. BREDEHOFT: That's fine. She answered 

19 she doesn't know. 

20 Then let's go to Deposition Exhib it 3 

2 1 again just quickly, Jacobs . 

22 A Is there a question? 

A Yes. 
Q And it says, I declare under the penalty 

7 of perjury under the laws of the State of 

~ California that the forgoing is true and correct 

) to the best of my knowledge, inforrnation, and 

10 belief. And you signed this on July 9th, 2020; 

11 correct? 

12 A Correct 
[j 

14 

I....!. vKay. 1 narucyou. All ngnt. 

MS. BREDEHOFT: You can take that down 

15 now, Alex. 

16 Q Now, Mr. Chew just took you through a 

17 number of documents that included a series of text 

18 messages between you and Mr. Depp. And it looks 

19 like you were working pretty dam hard for: 

20 Mr. Depp right up to October 2016 when he 

21 terminated, you would you agree? 

22 A I don't understand the preface. 
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197 199 

R, AA 
ICD 

l confusing two things. That I was working hard for I as ked and answered . 

2 him until he fired me, yes. 2 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Are you as king -­

MR. CHEW: Argumentative. 3 Q Okay. 3 

SP 

4 A I didn't understand the first half of the 
5 question. 
6 Q All right. I'll ask that. T hat's fair. 
7 Would it be fair to say that you were continuing 

8 to bring in good solid work for Mr. Depp right up 

9 to the time Mr. Depp terminated you? 

10 A Correct. Yes. 
LL l,./ Ukay. Anct as o t the trme that Mr. Uepp 

12 tenninated yo u, what would yo u say Mr. Depp 's 

13 reputation as an acto r was? 

14 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objec tion; vague. Yo u 

SP 

All Lines: 

15 can answer. 

16 MR. CHEW: Objec tion; calls fo r 

17 speculation; vague. 

18 A Can you be more specific, please? 
19 Q Earlier you said that Mr. Depp's 

20 reputation, that he became the greatest actor in 

2 l the world; right? 

22 A That's not what I said. I said he became 

I 
1 the biggest movie star in the world 

SP, P 2 Q Movie star. Thank you. Forgive me. So 

Lines 14-1 ~ 
lmpr. Char 4 
Evid ., 5 
Cumulativ 6 
AA 

7 

as of the time that you were terminated by 

Mr. Depp in October 20 16, did you still believe 

that Mr. Depp was the greatest movie star in the 

world? 

A No. 
8 Q Why not? 

9 A Because his star had dimmed due to it 
1 O getting harder to get him jobs given the 

198 

11 reputation he had acquired due to his lateness and 
12 other things. 
13 Q And what were the other things? 

14 A Just, you know, people were talking and 
15 the question was out there about his behavior. 
16 Q And that behavior included? 

17 A I think I described it several times. 
I 18 MR. CHEW: Asked and answered . 

lmpr. Char. E4i ·19 Q Would that behavior include alcoho l and 
Cumulative, 

20 drug use? 

1

2 1 MR. CHEW: Objection; that 

22 mischarac terizes her tes timony; and it's been 

4 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Are you as king if that's 

5 the reputation as she understood it at the time? 

6 MS. BREDEHOFT: Yes . 

7 A Yes. SP. P. lmor. Char. Evid .. Cumulativq. AA 

~ l,./ Ukay. ow, I'm Just go mg to as k a co up le 

9 of ques tions on the ones that Mr. Chew took yo u 

IO through. I was a tittle confused on one of yo ur 

11 answers. On Murder on the Orient Express, what 

12 did the movie make? 

13 A $300 million worldwide. 
14 Q Okay. Thank yo u. Now, you said that you 

15 were having diffic ulty getting corroboration on 

16 the back end . I believe th is was on -- was that 

17 Murder on the Orient Express or was that a 

18 different movie? 

19 A Murder on the Orient Express, that's not 
20 what I said. You're stating it differently. What 
21 I said is I don't reca lJ the exact back end. And 
22 I gave as much as I could remember. And we had 

200 

l done some projections for it, but I don't recall 
2 the exactness. I'd be giving inaccurate 
3 information. It's been five years. 
4 Q What I' m referring to is your testimony 

5 when yo u said you co uld not get corroboration fro m 

6 Mr. Depp 's business managers, do you recall 

7 tes tifying to that? 

8 A Yes. That's a separate question. What I 
9 said is I don't know how much he's actualJy 
10 received because l have no statements from Ed 
11 White, his current business manager. 
12 Q Have you asked Mr. White fo r the 

13 statements? 

14 A Yes. 
15 Q And what reaso ns has Mr. White given fo r 

16 not providing you those s tatements? 

17 A He hasn't. 
18 Q Would you say that Mr. White is not being 

19 cooperative? 

20 MR. CHEW: Objec tion to the --

2 1 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection. 

22 MR. CHEW: -- form of the ques tion; 
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201 

l argumentative. 

2 MR. MARMORST EIN: Join. 

3 A You know, I don't know. 
4 Q Do you have reason to believe that you're 

5 entitled to receive corro boration because you are 

6 receiving compensation? 

7 A Yes. 
8 Q Did you know Edward White before he became 

9 Mr. Depp's business manager? 

10 A No. 
11 Q Are you aware of Mr. White representing 

12 any other star in Ho llywood? 

13 A Yes. 
14 Q Who else? 

15 A Jack Nicholson. 
16 Q Anyone else? 

17 A Not that I'm aware of. 
18 Q Mr. Chew asked you about City of Lies, and 

R MIL · d. d th d'd ' b Ii · SP 19 you m 1cate at you I n t e eve 1t was 

ICD 20 released. Are you aware that Mr. Depp was accused 

2 1 of punching a local manager in the face during the 

22 filming of Ci of Lies? 

MR. CHEW: Objection; lack of foundation; 

2 lack of personal knowledge. 

202 

3 MR. MARMORST EIN: Calls fo r speculation. 

203 

I speculation. You can answer if you know. 

2 A What's the uestion again? I'm sorry. 
3 ~ Uo you have any understandmg ot why R, p 
4 Mr. Depp needed that loan in January of2016? 

5 A Yes. He had said- he had come in and 
6 met with us and he had asked for $20 million. 
7 Q Did Mr. Depp tell you when he met with you 

8 why he needed $20 million? 

19 MR. CHEW: O bjection; calls fo r hearsay. 

10 A Not specifically other than he just needed R, P 

11 the money. 
~----":""":":----:------:-.... -~--

12 Q Was there any general discussion as to whY, R, IL, 
13 he needed $20 million in January of2016? AA ICD 
14 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection; asked and 

15 answered . Other than he needed money? 

16 A Correct. 
17 Q So --

18 A Not as to why, he just expected us to do 
19 it. 
20 Q So you just -- Mr. Depp came in and said, 

2 1 I want to get $20 million for me? 

22 A ActuaUy it was, I want you to give me 
204 

L $20 million. It was not discussed. The question 
? was not asked as a loan. 
3 Q And what did you say in response? 

R, L 
AA ICD 

R, P 

R, P 

Lines 
7-13: 

RSP 
ICD 

4 You can answer, Tracey, if you know. 

5 A I read that. I don't know. 
1 A I didn't. Jeremy Zimmer and Jim Burkus H 

5 spoke directly to that point. I was just in the 

R 

6 MR. MARMORST EIN: Okay. 

7 Q Mr. Chew showed you what he labeled as 

8 Deposition Exlubit 5. And it was a text message 

9 from January of 2016. Respecting your efforts, 

IO UT A's efforts to assist Mr. Depp in obtaining a 

11 loan back in that time frame. Do you recall that? 

12 A Yes, but I wasn't involved in the 
13 acquisition of the loan myself. There were others 
14 specificaUy that dealt with it. I just knew it 
15 was ongoing. 
16 Q So do you have any understanding of why 

17 Mr. Depp was in need of a loan of that size in 

18 January of2016? 

19 MR. CHEW: Objection; lack of foundation; 

20 assumes facts not in evidence; lack of personal 

21 knowledge. 

22 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Join. Calls for 

6 meeting. 
7 Q And in the meeting, do you recall what 

Jeremy and Jim said to Mr. Depp when he asked them 

~ for $20 million? 

10 MR. CHEW: Objection; calls for hearsay. 

ll A Yes. They said we're not in a position to 
L2 give our clients that kind of money. We're not a 
L3 bank. 
14 Q Did Mr. Depp explain why he thought that 

15 you should just give him $20 million as opposed to 

16 loan? 

L7 A Yes. 
18 Q What--

L9 A He felt he made a lot of money for us and 
W that we should just do it because of how much 
H money he had made over the duration of his being 
natUTA. 
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I Q Have you ever had any other client who's 

2 ever made that kind of a demand? 

3 A No. 
4 Q What did you think when he said that? 

5 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection; calls for 

6 speculation; assumes facts not in evidence; lack 

7 foundation . You can answer if you had an 

8 understanding or tho ught of -- what that question 

9 is I'm not even sure, but if you understand, 

IO Tracey, you can answer. 

11 A I do understand. I thought it was nuts. 
12 Q And why? 

205 207 

I Mr. Depp's star had begun to dim by the time he t SP, 
2 terminated you, and you also indicated earlier Cumulati , P 

3 that you tho ught the lawsuits did not help his 

4 reputation, do you recall that testimony? 
l e 

I~ A Yes. SP, Cumulative j P 
7 Q Okay. I'm just go ing to go through some R 

8 dates with you. The Mandel complaint was filed on 

9 Januaryl3, 20 17. Thatwasafteryouwere 

10 terminated; correct? 

11 A It see~ so, yes. 
12 Q Do you believe that the filing of that 

Argumentativ 13 A No agency is in the position of a bank to 13 complaint and the ongoing litigation in the Mandel 

14 matter negatively impacted Mr. Depp's career? 

R IL, 
AA MIS, 
S, CD 

R, p 

R, p 

14 be giving cUents, not as a loan, not as a we'll 
15 cosign a loan, that we would just give him a check 
1 for $20 million. We have bills to pay too. We're 
17 a company. We have a lot of obUgations. 
18 Q Would it be fair to say you earned the 

19 money that yo u received as a result of 

20 representing Mr. Depp? 

21 MR. CHEW: Objection; form of the 

l 5 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection; asked and 

16 answered. I think you covered this, Elaine, on 

l 7 your direct. Because you asked this question and 

18 you tried to break it down by project and she said 

19 I think they all affected I'm not sure if this 

20 falls to that line of questioning, but I think 

2 1 that was your accurate. testimony. 

22 question; argumentative. 22 A I think it's the collection of all the R, MIL, 
1---------------+------------1M~V , ICD 

206 

I MR. MARMORSTEIN: Are you asking her 

2 ind ividually or? She's not here on behalf of the 

3 company, so ... 

4 MS. BREDEHOFT: lfshe felt -- if she fe lt 

5 they earned the money. 

6 MR. MARMORSTEIN: That the company earned 

7 the money. 

8 A Yes. 
9 Q Did you feel you earned the money that you 

10 were paid based on your work for Mr. Depp? 

11 A Yes. 
12 Q Now, Mr. Chew asked you a who le series of 

13 questions about different deals you were working 

14 on for Mr. Depp in 20 16 up to the time you were 

15 terminated. How many dea ls has Mr. Depp obtained 

16 through his new agent since he tenninated you? 

17 MR. MARMORST EIN: Objection; calls for 

18 speculation; lacks foundation; a sumes facts not 

19 in evidence. You can answer only if you know, 

20 Tracey. 

21 A I have no idea. 
122 Q You had indicated earlier that you thought 

1 
2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

lawsuits. 
Q A ll right. Do all the lawsuits inc lude 

the Mandel lawsuit? 

MR. CHEW: Objection; asked and answered; 

ca lls for speculatio n; lack of persona l know ledge; 

a sumes facts not in evidence. 

MR. MARMORSTEIN: [fyou know, Tracey, 

pec i fie to that. 

A He says --

10 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Ho ld on. Tracey, you 

11 have to answer if you know spec ific to each 

12 lawsuit. 

13 THE WITNESS: I don't. 

14 MR. MARMOR STEIN: Okay. 

15 Q I'm not asking specific to each lawsuit. 

16 I understand you're saying collective. I just 

17 want to make sure that we cover a ll the law uits , 

18 o I'm just going to go through quickly with you. 

19 I'm trying to move quickly, I assure you. So when 

20 you were aying the col lee ti ve lawsui ts that you 

2 1 fe lt damaged Mr. Depp's reputation, the first one 

22 I asked is do you think the Mande l was one of the 
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I co llective lawsuits you're referring to? 

2 A Not in and of -
3 MR. CHEW: Objection; asked and 
4 answered --
5 Q I understand --
6 MR. CHEW: Calls for speculation. 
7 Q -- I'm not trying to fight with yo u. I'm 
8 not trying to say that it's one individual one, l 
9 just want to make sure that I understand what you 
10 consider to be the collective lawsuits. So I'm 
11 just going to go through each of them and are 
12 those considered -- and I'm going to ask you the 
13 same question -- is this one considered one of the 
14 collective lawsuit that you're referring to that 
15 led --

16 A Yes. 
17 Q -- that has harmed his reputation? 

18 A Yes. 
19 Q Okay. So --

20 A Let me say one other thing. 
lncom. Desig. ,2 1 Q Absolutely. 

209 

P, SP, Lack of ~ii. 
Know. 1.1. A The majority of really damaging ones were 

11(\ 

R, P, SP, La~l 
of Pers. Kno . ., 
Cumulative, f"' 

3 

done after he fired me, the ones relating to why 
we're all here. So I was not involved - I wasn't 
involved in any of them, but that made it worse. 

4 Q And I'm not disagreeing with you. I just 
5 want to make sure we have a clear record on this 
6 one. [ swear, I'm go ing to try to do this as fast 
7 as I can, because I fu lly respect your time, and 

R, P, SP, Lac 8 wow, you're a create agent. So of the collective 
of Pers. Know lawsuits that you believe have led to the damaging 
Cumulative, A 

IO of Mr. Depp's reputation, does the Depp v. Bloom 
11 complaint filed on October 17, 2017, is that one 
12 of the collective lawsuits you're referring to? 
13 MR. CHEW: Objection; calls for 
14 speculation; asked and answered . 
1 'i MR. MARMORSTETN: .loin. 

R, P, SP, Lac 16 A Yes. 
of Pers. Kno 

1 7 cumulative, fl Q And is the complaint that was filed on 
18 May 1st, 2018, by Mr. Depp's bodyguards against 
19 Mr. Depp, is that part of the collective lawsuits 
20 vou're referrin2: to? 
21 MR. CHEW: Objection; asked and answered ; 
22 lack of personal knowledge; calls for speculation. 

I 

2 
MR. MARMORSTEIN: Join. 

A Yes. 
3 Q Is the comp laint filed by Mr. Brooks, the Pers. Know., 

Cumm lative, 
4 local manager in the City of Lies against Mr. Depp AF 

5 on June 6th, 20 l 8, is that part of the collective 
6 lawsuits you're referring to? 
7 MR. CHEW: Objection; asked and answered ; 
8 calls for speculation; lack of personal knowledge. 
9 MR. MARMORSTETN: Join. 

10 A Yes. R, P, SP, cks 
11 Q And is the particulars of claim that Pers. K ow., 

. Cummul live 
12 Mr. Depp filed against The Sun and Mr. Wootton m AF 
13 London on June 13, 2018, part of the collective 
14 lawsuits you're referring to? 
15 MR. CHEW: Objection; asked and answered ; 
16 lack of fotmdation; calls for speculation. 
17 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Join. 

1
18 A Yes. R, P, SP,i acks 
19 Q And is the complaint that Mr. Depp filed Pers. ow., 

. Cummul t1ve , 
20 agam t Ms. Heard on March 1st, 20 19, part of the AF 

J ( I co llective lawsuits that you're referring to? 
(2 MR. CHEW: Objection; asked and answered; 

212 

I calls for speculation; lack of personal knowledge. 
2 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Join. 
3 A Yes. R, P, SP, 
4 Q And were you aware of the Rolling Stone Pers. 

5 article that was published on June 21, 2018? 

6 A ls that the one with Adam Waldman? 
7 Q Yes . 

8 A Yes. 
9 Q How do you believe that article in Rolling 
10 Stone impacted Mr. Depp's reputation? 
11 MR. CHEW: Objection; leading --
12 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Objection; assumes 
13 facts. 
14 MR. CHEW: I'm sorry, go ahead, David , I 
15 apo logize. 
16 MR. MARMORSTETN: Assumes facts ; lacks 
17 foundation; calls for speculation. 
18 MR. CHEW: Lack of foundation; 
19 argumentative; leading. 
O THE WITNESS: Can I answer? 

21 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Yeah, ifyou know 
22 Tracey. 

acks 
now., 
AF, L 
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213 

I A Other than the fact that Adam Waldman came 

2 across as a ridiculous, pompous ass, the 

R, P, SP, 3 implication from everything that was said in the 

Lacks Pers. 4 interview was that he was doing drugs during the 
Know., AF 

R 

ICD 

5 interview. I mean, you don't have to be a rocket 

6 scientist. I was shocked when I read that 

7 interview. 

8 Q And do you believe the Rolling Stone 

9 interview, the article, damaged Mr. Depp's 

l O reputation? 

11 A Yes. 

12 MR. CHEW: Objection; a ked and answered; 

13 lack of personal knowledge; argumentative; calls 

14 for speculation. 

15 A Yes. 
l 6 Q Okay. I just have a couple of more 

17 questions here. 

18 Are you aware of any significant role that 

19 Mr. Depp has starred in since you were terminated 

20 that you did not negotiate and get for him? 

2 l MR. CHEW: Objection; a ked and answered; 

22 lack of personal knowledge; calls for speculation. 

She's already answered that. 

2 MS. BREDEHOFT: I asked it a little 

3 differently. 

4 

Is 
MR. MARMORSTEIN: Are you aware, Tracey? 

THE WITNESS: o. 

6 Q Did Mr. De get The Invisible Man? 

7 A They didn't make it. They made it much 

8 lower budget with a woman, as it turns out, for 

9 Universal with Blumhouse. 

214 

P, SP, Lack IO Q Yo u were asked about whether there was any 
Pers. Know., 11 option contract for Pirates 6. And !just want to 
AF 'd 12 make sure I understand your answer. D1 you --

13 were you involved in any kind of negotiation with 

14 Disney for any kind of option contract fo r 

15 Pirates 6 with Mr. Depp? 

16 A Notthatlcanrecall,no. 

17 MS. BREDEHOFT: All right. I have no more 

18 questions thank you very much. 

19 MR. CHEW: And, Ms. Jacobs, I just have a 

20 couple based on Ms. Bredehoft's comments. 

21 EXAMINATIO BY COUNSEL FOR THE PLAINTIFF 

22 BY MR. CHEW: 

I Q You had great success for Johnny Depp; 

2 correct? 

3 A l think so. 
4 Q And you had -- isn't it true that 

5 approximately -- that your agency received IO 
6 percent with respect to each deal? 

7 A You asked me thjs before. You said 10 

215 

8 percent front end and back end, and the answer is 
9 still the same, yes. 
10 Q And is it a ballpark during the tenure 

11 that you had with Johnny Depp that it approximates 

12 about $65 million that yo u earned? 

13 MS. BREDEHOFT: Objection; leading; 

14 hearsay; and foundation --

15 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Calls for speculation. 

16 MS. BREDEHOFT: -- and calls for 

17 peculation. Thank you, Dave. 

18 MR. MARMORSTEIN: Do you know? Do you 

19 know, Tracey? 

20 A Yes. 
2 l Q And it was about 65 million? 

22 A Yes. 
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I MS. BREDEHOFT: Sarre objections. 

2 Q And that success continued through --

3 LD1til the end of your tenure; correct? 

4 A Yes. 

5 Q Thank you very nu::h 

6 A You're "'elcome. 

7 MS. BREDEHOFT: One follow-up. 

8 EXAMINATIO BYCO SELFORTHEDEFENDANT 

9 BY MS. BREDEHOFT: 

I O Q So if we take that as one-tenth and we 

11 1rultiply that by ten, is that how m.1Ch you ITT1de 

12 for Johnny Depp over the years you represented 

13 him? 

14 A Yes. 

15 MS. BREDEHOFT: Tiiank yoll No m:>re 

16 questions. David, under the rules in Virginia --

1 7 and l realize thi5 is kind of strange, both 

18 Califurnia and Virginia, we have to have on the 

19 record that Ms. Jacobs has the right to read or 

20 waive signature. So she bas the right to be able 

21 to obtain a copy, review it, and l think it's 

22 3 0 days in Ca lifurnia, l think it's 2 I ITTlybe in 
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I Virginia, but we're fine with 30, and if she has I CERTIFICATE OF SHORTHAND REPORTER- OT ARY PUBLIC 

2 any corrections, typos , things of that nature she 

3 can do that or she can waive her signature, so yo u 

4 might want to put that on the record. 

5 MR. MARMORSTErN: Yeah. No, we would like 

6 the opportunity to have her review and revise as 

7 needed her transcript. 30 day [ think would be 

8 fine, and if it has to be longer I'll let you 

9 know. 

IO MS. BREDEHOFT: Okay. Thank you. 

! I MR. CHEW: Thank you, David . Thank you, 

12 Tracey. 

13 MR. MARMORSTErN: Thank yo u. Thank you, 

14 Tracey. 

15 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: Okay. It is the end of 

16 the testimony of Tracey Jacobs. It is 5:01 p .m. 

17 We go off the record. 

18 (Off the record at 5:0 1 p.m.) 

19 
20 
2 1 

22 

I ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF DEPONENT 

2 I, TRACEY JACOBS, do hereby acknowledge 

3 that I have read ard examined the foregoing 

4 testirrony ard the sarre is a true, correct ard 

5 colll)lete t:ran.5cription of the testirrony given by 

6 rre and any corrections appear on the attached 

7 errata sheet signed by me. 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 
21 

22 

(SIGNATIJRE) (DATE) 

2 18 

2 I, PAUL P. SMAKULA, the officer before whom 

3 the foregoing deposition was taken, do hereby 

4 certify that the foregoing transc ript is a true 

5 and correct record of the testimony given; that 

6 said testimony was taken by me stenographically 

7 and thereafter reduced to typewriting under my 

8 direction; that reading and s igning was requested; 

9 and that l am neither counsel for, related to, nor 

IO employed by any of the parties to this case and 

11 have no interest, fmancial or otherwise, in its 

12 outcome. 

13 

14 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand 

15 and affixed my notarial seal this 5th day of 

16 February, 2021. 

17 

J 8 My commission expires: June 18, 2023 . 

19 IJ,/t?~ ~ )' 
20 ~~~~~~~~-
21 OTARY PUBLI C rN D FOR 

22 THE ST ATE OF MARYL D 
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